
Facilities Committee Meeting Agenda - Tuesday, March 21, 2023 

LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74
BOARD OF EDUCATION
FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2023 AT 6:00 PM

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Kevin Daly, President

Rupal Shah Mandal, Vice President
John P. Vranas, Secretary

                                                                                                                  Myra A. Foutris
Elaina Geraghty

Jay Oleniczak
Peter D. Theodore

ADMINISTRATION
Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Dominick M. Lupo, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO 

Agenda of the Facilities Committee Meeting of the Board of Education of Lincolnwood School District 74,
Cook County, Illinois, to be held in the Marvin Garlich Administration Building

6950 N. East Prairie Road
Lincolnwood, Illinois 60712,

on Tuesday, March 21, 2023.

IN-PERSON PARTICIPATION: It is expected that all members of the Facilities Committee, plus several administrators, will be 
physically present at the Marvin Garlich Administration Building located at 6950 N. East Prairie Road, Lincolnwood, IL. The 
public is welcome.

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEMBERS
John P. Vranas (BOE), Chair
Elaina Geraghty (BOE), Co-Chair   
Rupal Shah Mandal (BOE)
Wendy Grano, Community Member
Emily McCall, Community Member
Zade Tagani, Community Member

ADMINISTRATORS/STAFF 
Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools
Dr. Dominick M. Lupo, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO
Jim Caldwell, Director of Buildings and Grounds

 
2. AUDIENCE TO VISITORS

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a. Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes - FEBRUARY 21, 2023
 
Motion by member:________________ Seconded by:____________________
 

4. DISTRICT ARCHITECT OF RECORD - STUDIOGC architecture+interiors
a. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: StudioGC architecture+interiors Project(s) Update

I. In an Effort to Obtain Bid Approvals from the Board of Education in Autumn 2023, the 
Administration Seeks Direction from the Facilities Committee and StudioGC Relative to 
Summer 2023 Construction Projects. The Current Version of the SD74 Master Facilities 
Plan is Attached.
 

3

6

1



Facilities Committee Meeting Agenda - Tuesday, March 21, 2023 

b. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Todd Hall’s PreK and Kindergarten Classroom Furniture
 

c. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Rutledge Hall’s Library & Grades 4-5 Reading Nook 
Furniture
 

d. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: 2023 Site Work Bid Results (Todd Hall Courtyard & Lincoln 
Hall Plaza)
 

e. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Window Treatments Bid Results
 

5. OLD BUSINESS
 

6. NEW BUSINESS
a. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Village of Lincolnwood Intergovernmental Agreement 

(IGA)
 

7. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: District Facilities Update 
a. Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Cafeterias - Lowery McDonnell & Mitchell
b. Kathak Dance Organization - Facilities Rental
c. Magnetic Closure was Installed on the CCDC Office Door

 
8. ADJOURNMENT

 
Motion by member: ______________ Seconded by: _________________
 

Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools
Lincolnwood School District 74 is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with 
disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or facility, are requested 
to contact the District Office at 847-675-8234 promptly to allow Lincolnwood School District 74 to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons. 

9

21

44

124

159

169

2



Facilities Committee Meeting Agenda - Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74
BOARD OF EDUCATION
FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2023 AT 6:00 PM

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Kevin Daly, President

Rupal Shah Mandal, Vice President
John P. Vranas, Secretary

                                                                                                                  Myra A. Foutris
Elaina Geraghty

Jay Oleniczak
Peter D. Theodore

ADMINISTRATION
Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Dominick M. Lupo, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO 

Minutes of the Facilities Committee Meeting of the Board of Education of Lincolnwood School District 74,
Cook County, Illinois, to be held in the Marvin Garlich Administration Building

6950 N. East Prairie Road, Lincolnwood, Illinois 60712, on Tuesday, February 21, 2023.

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                  
Chair Vranas called the Facilities Committee meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEMBERS
John P. Vranas (BOE), Chair
Elaina Geraghty (BOE), Co-Chair   
Rupal Shah Mandal (BOE)
Wendy Grano, Community Member
Zade Tagani, Community Member

FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEMBERS NOT PRESENT
Emily McCall, Community Member

ADMINISTRATORS/STAFF 
Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools
Dr. Dominick M. Lupo, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO
Jim Caldwell, Director of Buildings and Grounds
Chris Harmon, Principal, Todd Hall Elementary School
Athi Toufexis, StudioGC

2. AUDIENCE TO VISITORS
              None
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes - JANUARY 17, 2023 

A motion was made, seconded and passed to approve the January 17, 2023 Facilities Committee 
meeting minutes.

3



Facilities Committee Meeting Agenda - Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

 
4. DISTRICT ARCHITECT OF RECORD - STUDIOGC architecture+interiors
a. StudioGC architecture+interiors Project(s) Update

i.   Bid for Todd Hall & Lincoln Hall Site Renovations (Todd Hall Courtyard/Lincoln Hall Plaza)
Four contractors attended the pre bid meeting, bids are due Thursday, March 2, 2023. 

ii.  Arborist's Analysis
Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO, explained Bartlett Tree Experts’ analysis of the two Todd 
Hall courtyard trees. The Committee recommended replacing them with new trees that have a root 
system which grows straight down rather than a sprawling, shallow root system.

iii.   Rutledge Hall Library Lookbook 
  The Committee reviewed the plans as presented in the packet.

iv.   Pre-Kindergarten and Kindergarten Classroom Furniture 
  Athi Toufexis, StudioGC, met with Mr. Harmon and the Todd Hall staff to review the presentation 
and to get feedback. Mr. Harmon commented that the staff really liked rectangle shapes and the 
kindergarten team was interested in six-foot tables. He also mentioned that most of the staff liked 
the idea of having the different colored table edges so they can use the coloring to assign students 
to tables. The staff liked the top handles on the chairs. The Committee decided to hold off on 
updating the Pre-K cubbies until the Todd Hall millwork refresh in 2026.

v.  Bid for Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments
 One contractor attended the pre-bid visit today. Bids are due Wednesday, March 8, 2023.

b.    Tree of Heaven Struck by Lightning
The Committee recommended consulting with an arborist to evaluate the tree’s health caused by 
two lightning strikes. If this tree poses such a threat to fall or another dangerous situation, the 
Committee recommended its removal.

5. OLD BUSINESS
None
 

6. NEW BUSINESS
None
 

7. District Facilities Update 
a. Regional Scripps Spelling Bee - Wednesday, March 15, 2023
             Business Manager/CSBO Whited discussed the planning for the Regional Scripps Spelling Bee.

b. Cafeteria Tables at Todd Hall and Lincoln Hall
             The ship date is March 13, 2023 for the cafeteria tables’ aesthetic components.

c. The District will Partner with CCDC to Install a Magnetic Holder on the Daycare Director’s Office                        
Door #110 in Todd Hall

4



Facilities Committee Meeting Agenda - Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

Administration will coordinate this project with CCDC.

8. ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made, seconded, and passed to adjourn the Facilities Committee meeting at 6:27 p.m. 
The next Facilities Committee meeting will be held Tuesday, March 21, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. The public is
welcome.

____________________________________
John P. Vranas, Chair

______________________________________
Rupal Shah Mandal, Co-chair

 

 

Dr. David L. Russo, Superintendent of Schools
Lincolnwood School District 74 is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with 
disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or facility, are requested 
to contact the District Office at 847-675-8234 promptly to allow Lincolnwood School District 74 to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons. 

5



DATE: March 21, 2023

TOPIC: District Architect of Record -  StudioGC architecture+interiors Project(s) Update 

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited, Business Manager/CSBO with

Athi Toufexis, Principal, StudioGC architecture+interiors 

Recommended for:

☐ Action

☒ Discussion

☒ Information

Purpose:

To provide the Facilities Committee an update on StudioGC architecture+interiors District Projects:

1. In an effort to obtain bid approvals from the Board of Education in Autumn 2023, the 

Administration seeks direction from the Facilities Committee and StudioGC relative to 

Summer 2023 construction projects. The current version of the SD74 Master Facilities Plan 

is attached.

Facilities Committee Meeting

6



HLS - "A" Category Required $0

HLS - "B" Category Required $1,196,866

Building Maintenance $4,031,918

Capital Imp. Projects $10,708,969

Grand Total: $15,937,753

2023 - Previous Survey Estimates
Priority Code School Category Estimated Cost Bid Costs to 

Date
Notes

Subtotal $0
HLS B Todd Hall Mechanical $92,627 $92,627
HLS B Todd Hall Plumbing $137,494 $137,494
HLS B Todd Hall Plumbing $266,304 $266,304
HLS B Todd Hall Plumbing $6,513 $6,513
HLS B Rutledge Hall Masonry $3,618 - incorporated in cost below

Subtotal $506,556
Maintenance Todd Hall Masonry Tuckpointing TBD $86,520
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Masonry Tuckpointing TBD $57,985 new project added
Maintenance Lincoln Hall Masonry Tuckpointing Tuckpoint area above main office TBD $57,985 new project added
Maintenance Administration Masonry Tuckpointing TBD $47,010 new project added
Maintenance Todd Hall Roofing $134,387 $51,667
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Roofing $608,786 $740,367
Maintenance Administration Roofing $200,000 $187,567
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Mechanical $111,583 $180,000
Maintenance Todd Hall Mechanical $234,325 $220,000
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Flooring Replace gym, multipurpose room, and library flooring TBD $195,000 new project added
Maintenance Campus Lawn sprinkler heads Replace lawn sprinkler heads TBD

Subtotal $1,289,082
Capital Todd Hall Plumbing TBD new project added
Capital Todd Hall Misc Courtyard Renovation $251,063 new project added
Capital Lincoln Hall Misc Plaza Renovations $347,565 new project added
Capital Rutledge Hall Misc Replace window treatments - all classrooms TBD new project added
Capital Todd Hall Misc Replace window treatments - main office & library TBD new project added
Capital Todd Hall Misc Misc. renovations (nurse's office; toilet rooms; library) TBD $317,062 new project added
Capital Todd Hall Classroom Furniture $141,777 $65,892
Capital Rutledge Hall Furniture Replace library furniture & casework TBD $168,000
Capital Rutledge Hall Furniture Classroom rocking chairs $11,200 new project added

Subtotal $751,605
Total 2023 Cost $2,547,243 $2,877,992

2024 - Previous Survey Estimates
Priority Code School Category Estimated Cost

Subtotal $0
HLS B Rutledge Hall Plumbing $7,598
HLS B Rutledge Hall Plumbing $537,963
HLS B Rutledge Hall Plumbing $9,118

Subtotal $554,679
Maintenance Todd Hall Asphalt TBD
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Mechanical $1,171,626
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Mechanical $48,243
Maintenance Rutledge Hall Mechanical $66,162
Maintenance Todd Hall Flooring Replace gym flooring
Maintenance Lincoln Hall Enclosure Replace painted insulated panels at courtyard TBD

Subtotal $1,286,032
Capital Todd Hall Classroom Furniture $115,784
Capital Rutledge Hall Misc Courtyard Renovation $132,837
Capital Rutledge Hall Plumbing TBD
Capital Todd Hall Lighting
Capital Rutledge Hall Misc Gymnasium presentation system TBD new project added

Subtotal $248,622
Total 2024 Cost $2,089,333

maybe swap with Todd Hall for 2025

maybe swap with Todd Hall for 2025

Drinking fountain replacement New project added to plan
Replace classroom lighting New project added to plan

maybe swap with Todd Hall for 2025
Replace fan coil units

New project added to plan

Replace 1st grade classroom furniture

Drinking fountain replacement plus additions

Replace exhaust fans

New project added to plan

Replace pre-K and K classroom furniture

Replace modified bitumen roof
Replace TPO roof with modified bitumen
Replace modified bitumen roof
Replace exhaust fans

Replace galvanized water piping and fixtures
Install vacuum breaker faucets

Sealcoat, stripe, crack fill parking lot
Replace classroom univents
Replace cabinet unit heaters

Item Notes

Provide sprinkler flow switch

Miscellaneous building tuckpointing

Miscellaneous building tuckpointing

Replace piping and fixtures with new
Provide backflow prevention devices at mop sinks
Replace chimney capstone

Miscellaneous building tuckpointing

Item 

Replace mechanical system piping valves with actuators
Replace galvanized water piping and fixtures

Master Facilities Plan - DRAFT
2023-2026

March 10, 2023

* Total Project Costs include A/E fee; do not include 
contingencies

2023-2026 Remaining Estimated Costs

DRAFT7



2025 - Previous Survey Estimates
Priority Code School Category Estimated Cost

Subtotal $0
HLS B Lincoln Hall Masonry $47,870
HLS B Lincoln Hall General Trades $39,891
HLS B Lincoln Hall General Trades $47,870

Subtotal $135,630
Maintenance Lincoln/Rutledge Asphalt $33,381
Maintenance Todd Hall Mechanical $1,121,660
Maintenance Todd Hall Mechanical $50,656
Maintenance Todd Hall Mechanical $23,157
Maintenance Todd Hall Plumbing TBD

Subtotal $1,228,854
Capital Todd Hall Classroom Furniture $121,573
Capital Todd Hall Addition $3,702,615
Capital Lincoln Hall Misc Courtyard Renovation $234,325

Subtotal $4,058,514
Total 2025 Cost $5,422,998

2026 - Proposed
Priority Code School Category Estimated Cost

Subtotal $0

Subtotal $0
Maintenance Todd Hall Painting $227,950

Subtotal $227,950
Capital Todd Hall Casework $328,248
Capital Todd Hall Lighting $455,901
Capital Todd Hall Lighting $455,901
Capital Todd Hall Classroom Furniture $36,472
Capital Rutledge Hall Casework $683,851
Capital Rutledge Hall Addition $3,689,856

Subtotal $5,650,229
Total 2026 Cost $5,878,179

Replace classroom casework
Classroom Addition New project added to plan

maybe swap with Rutledge Hall for 2024

maybe swap with Rutledge Hall for 2024

Paint interior

Replace classroom casework
Replace classroom lighting to LED
Replace corridor/office lighting to LED
Replace shared instructional furniture

Item Notes

Replace 2nd grade classroom furniture
Classroom Addition New project added to plan

New project added to plan

Sealcoat, stripe, crack fill parking lot
Replace classroom univents
Replace cabinet unit heaters maybe swap with Rutledge Hall for 2024
Replace fan coil units
Replace tunnel piping

Underpin and replace cracked masonry walls
Miscellaneous exterior soffit repairs
Repair foundation wall leaks

Item Notes

DRAFT8



DATE:  March 21, 2023

TOPIC: Todd Hall’s PreK and Kindergarten Classroom Furniture

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited

Recommended for:

☒ Action

☒ Discussion

☒ Information

Background:

The Board of Education approves purchases over $10,000. After months of planning, discussion and review, 

StudioGC has secured two quotes from furniture vendors in an effort to complete the four (4) PreK and six 

(6) Kindergarten classroom furniture installations during the summer of 2023. Drawings and product quotes 

are attached.

Fiscal Impact:

$18,893.88 (KI Company)

$46,998.31 (Interiors for Business)

============================

$65,892.19 Total

Recommendation:

The Facilities Committee concurs with the Administration to recommend to the Board of Education to 

accept the quotes from KI and IFB for PreK and Kindergarten furniture in the total amount of $65, 892.19 to 

be installed during the summer of 2023.

Executive Summary
Facilities Committee Meeting

9



8183

8205

604.256

604.064

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

101B

NURSE
100A

TOILET
100C

GIRLS TOILET
304

BOYS TOILET
306

BOYS TOILET
101AGIRLS TOILET

101B

304306

KINDERGARTEN
313

KINDERGARTEN
311

KINDERGARTEN
401

KINDERGARTEN
400

KINDERGARTEN
403

KINDERGARTEN
402

NEW NTDSE
108

PRE-KINDERGARTEN
200

PRE-KINDERGARTEN
201

NTDSE
202

COPYRIGHT 2022, STUDIOGC, INC.

03.02.23

22
06

6

1

Todd Hall - Furniture Floor Plan - Scope of Work
Lincolnwood SD 74
2023 TH RH LH General Work
6950 E Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood, IL 60712

1 : 1501 1.0 New FURNITURE PLAN-SHADED

10



PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

NEW NTDSE
108CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2

M1

M2

CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2

T7CH2

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

T8

PRE-KINDERGARTEN
200

PRE-KINDERGARTEN
201

NTDSE
202

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2
CH2 CH2

M1

M1 M1

T3 T5

T2 T4

T3T5

T2T4

T1

CH2

CH2 CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2 CH2

CH2

CH2

CH2 CH2T6 T6

T7

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

T5

T4
T8 T8

T8T8

T8 T8

T8T8

COPYRIGHT 2022, STUDIOGC, INC.

03.02.23

22
06

6

2

Todd Hall - Furniture Floor Plan - Pre-K
Lincolnwood SD 74
2023 TH RH LH General Work
6950 E Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood, IL 60712

 1/4" = 1'-0"1 1.0 New FURNITURE PLAN - PREK NW
 1/4" = 1'-0"2 1.0 New FURNITURE PLAN - PREK NE

11



PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

8183

8205

604.256

604.064

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

PC1842
-MB

KINDERGARTEN
313

KINDERGARTEN
311

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

T2

T3 T5

T4 T2

T3 T5

T4

GIRLS TOILET
304

BOYS TOILET
306

KINDERGARTEN
401

KINDERGARTEN
400

KINDERGARTEN
403

KINDERGARTEN
402

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1CH1CH1

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2CH2CH2

CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1

CH1CH1

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1CH1

CH1CH1

CH1CH1

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2CH2

CH2CH2

CH2CH2

M1 M1

M1 M1

T3 T5

T2 T4

T3 T5

T2 T4

T5

T4

T5

T4

T3

T2

T3

T2

COPYRIGHT 2022, STUDIOGC, INC.

03.02.23

22
06

6

3

Todd Hall - Furniture Floor Plan - Kindergarten
Lincolnwood SD 74
2023 TH RH LH General Work
6950 E Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood, IL 60712

 1/4" = 1'-0"1 1.0 New FURNITURE PLAN - KINDERGARTEN SOUTH
 1/4" = 1'-0"2 1.0 New FURNITURE PLAN - KINDERGARTEN CENTRAL

12



223 W. Jackson Blvd. Client: Lincolnwood SD74
Suite 1200 Project Name: Todd Hall 
Chicago, IL  60606 PreK & Kindergarten FF&E
P:  (312) 253-3400   Project No.: 22124

Project Architect: Athi Toufexis

Remarks

PROPOSAL SUMMARY WORKSHEET

Student Tables
KI

Furniture Areas Total Proposal Amount

$18,893.88

$46,998.31Student Chairs & Desks, Teacher Lecterns, Cubbies
Interiors for Business

Project Total $65,892.19

 Page 1 P:\Lincolnwood SD 74\22124 - PreK & Kindergarten Furniture\F-Bid Negotiation\_Bids\Proposal Tab-22124-Lincolnwood Todd Hall FFE - Final

13



Studio GC Architecture: Lincolnwood Todd Hall 
Pre-k & Kindergarten

CREATED 3/2/2023 | REVISED 3/8/2023 | Valid Through 5/1/2023

QUOTATION: 23TRB-626178/C

14



PRODUCT TOTALS $14,474.88
See Quote Detail Summary $4,419.00
GRAND TOTAL $18,893.88

Requested Delivery Date: To be Determined

KI is pleased to present the enclosed 
quotation. The following items are 
included:

• Quote 
• Summary
• Itemized Quote
• Detailed PO requirements
• Product Options

Sales Team:

Anson Arndt
Sales Rep
anson.arndt@ki.com
(630) 364-9180

Terry Bortz
Inside Sales Associate
terry.bortz@ki.com

Studio GC Architecture: Lincolnwood Todd Hall Pre-k & 
Kindergarten

Quote Number: 23TRB-626178/C

CREATED 3/2/2023  |  REVISED 3/8/2023  |  Valid Through 5/1/2023

Client Notes:
Install Price is prevailing wage.

Ship To
To be Determined

Installation
To be Determined

Sold To
To be Determined

End User
Studio GC Architecture
223 West Jackson Blvd Suite 1200
Chicago,  IL  60606
P. (312) 253-3400  F. (312) 258-0301

Page: 1 of 5

15



CREATED 3/2/2023
VALID THROUGH 5/1/2023
Prepared By Terry Bortz
Quote Filename Studio GC Architecture: Lincolnwood Todd Hall Pre-k & Kindergarten - 23TRB-626178/C

Line Model Qty.    Sell Price Extended Total TBD 
Options

Tag 1: T-1
1.1 RTEEF367224-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Kidney,1-

1/4"Top,74P Edge,36x72x24"
1 $502.08 $502.08

Edge Color Zesty Lime edge /EZL
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 202
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-1 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $502.08
  
Tag 1: T-2

2.1 RTEEA3072-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Rectangle
(Round Corner),1-1/4"Top,74P Edge,30x72"

9 $340.32 $3,062.88

Edge Color Ultra Blue edge /EUB
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 200, 201, 202, 311, 313, 400, 401, 402, 403
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-2 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $3,062.88
  
Tag 1: T-3

3.1 RTEEA3072-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Rectangle
(Round Corner),1-1/4"Top,74P Edge,30x72"

9 $340.32 $3,062.88

Edge Color Nemo edge /ENE
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 200, 201, 202, 311, 313, 400, 401, 402, 403
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-3 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $3,062.88
  
Tag 1: T-4

4.1 RTEEA3054-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Rectangle
(Round Corner),1-1/4"Top,74P Edge,30x54"

9 $348.96 $3,140.64

Edge Color Mardi Gras edge /EMG
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 200, 201, 202, 311, 313, 400, 401, 402, 403
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-4 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $3,140.64
  

Page: 2 of 5

16



CREATED 3/2/2023
VALID THROUGH 5/1/2023
Prepared By Terry Bortz
Quote Filename Studio GC Architecture: Lincolnwood Todd Hall Pre-k & Kindergarten - 23TRB-626178/C

Line Model Qty.    Sell Price Extended Total TBD 
Options

Tag 1: T-5
5.1 RTEEA3054-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Rectangle

(Round Corner),1-1/4"Top,74P Edge,30x54"
9 $348.96 $3,140.64

Edge Color Rubber Ducky edge /ERK
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 200, 201, 202, 311, 313, 400, 401, 402, 403
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-5 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $3,140.64
  
Tag 1: T-6

6.1 RTEEY48-74P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Activity Table 20 to 33",Clover,1-
1/4"Top,74P Edge,48"

2 $367.68 $735.36

Edge Color Zesty Lime edge /EZL
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates STERLING ASH 7995-38 /LAZ
Base Finish Starlight Silver Metallic /SX
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC

 MK: 200, 201
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-6 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $735.36
  
Tag 1: T-7

7.1 RUE50A Ruckus,ADA Single Post Cantilever Desk Lam. Top Adj. Set 
Screw Hgt.,Wheelbarrow Base,25x36"

2 $415.20 $830.40

Book Storage Option No book storage /NB
Wheelbarrow Base Wheelbarrow (rolling front, steel glides 

back)
/RSL

Surface Finish KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates CLASSIC LINEN 4943-38 /LCI
Edge Color Ultra Blue edge /EUB
Frame Color Starlight Silver Metallic /SX

 MK: 108, 202
 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 3/8/2023 and is subject to change.

Tag 1: T-7 WorkGroup Product Subtotal $830.40
  
Quote Summary

Product SubTotal: $14,474.88
Installation: $4,419.00

Estimated Sales Tax: See Notes
Quote Total: $18,893.88

NOTES:
• Images shown above are intended for approximate visual reference only and may not represent the exact models, numbers, descriptions or options selected. Refer to the 

model number/description/options shown for full product specifications.

Page: 3 of 5

17



• Sales Tax (For Shipment within the United States Only): Estimated sales/use tax will be calculated when order is entered.  It is the customer's responsibility to pay any 
applicable sales/use tax due upon invoicing.  A customer will not be charged sales tax if (1) a Resale Certificate, (2) an Exempt Organization Certificate, or (3) a Direct Pay 
permit is on file with KI's Finance Department.  If no certificate is on file, the appropriate sales/use tax rate in effect at shipment will be applied and tax will be added to the 
customer's invoice.

PROJECT LEAD TIME SUMMARY:

• Manufacturing lead time begins once the order is complete and acknowledged. Delivery dates are determined per order based on the longest lead time per shipping location 
and are confirmed on the order acknowledgement.
Shipping Location MFG Lead Time Range

BONDUEL, WI                   3 - 5 Weeks

• Lead times are subject to change based on quantities, manufacturing capacity and surface material selections. Laminate and/or fabrics outside the standard KI ingrade 
program may have extended lead time.

• For more information or questions regarding delivery consolidation, contact KI Customer Service.

Page: 4 of 5

18



Final Considerations:
To ensure your Purchase Order (PO) is processed quickly and efficiently, please adhere to the 
following requirements:

1. All purchase orders must be issued to KI or KI c/o the dealer with this address:
KI
1330 Bellevue Street
Green Bay, WI 54302

2. The following items must be included on all purchase orders:
◦ Sold To/Bill To Information: complete legal name, address, telephone number and fax 

number
◦ Ship To Information: complete legal name, address, contact name, contact phone 

number
◦ Purchase Order Number: a customer-specific identifier, typically a sequential purchase 

order number or requisition number
◦ Issue Date: date the purchase order was issued
◦ Sales Tax: applicable sales tax will be added upon KI invoicing. If tax exempt, customer 

must provide or have the tax exempt certificate on file at KI
◦ Purchase Order Total: total of all items and services included on the purchase order
◦ Authorization: signature of authorized purchasing agent or buying entity
◦ Order Details: reference a fully optioned KI quote (ex: 11KGH-85432) or include all the 

information listed below
▪ Quantity of each item
▪ Complete model number, including all finish and option information (by line item)
▪ Net purchase price (by line item)
▪ Extended net purchase price (all line items)
▪ Any additional applicable charges (ex: installation and/or delivery charges)
▪ Contract name and/or number if pricing is based on a contract reference

         3.      Signatures on a quote or a worksheet cannot be accepted as a purchase order.

         4.      In the event that you do not have a formal Purchase Order process, please contact your KI 
     Sales Representative or call 1-800-424-2432, and we will assist you with creating a PO. 

We appreciate your cooperation in providing us with all the required information listed above on 
your Purchase Order. Complete information helps us serve you better. Thank you for your order. 

Purchase Orders that do not meet these requirements will be placed on hold until 
complete information is received by KI.  Purchase orders on hold are not released to 
manufacturing or assigned a delivery date. KI order lead times begin once the order is 
released to manufacturing.

Sales resulting from purchase orders issued by 
the customer to KI (Whether related to this 
quotation or otherwise) are governed and 
controlled by the Terms and Conditions found 
at www.KI.com/terms

Prepared by Terry Bortz
Market Code: 19=19=Unknown

Opportunity #: 626178
Quote Filename: Studio GC Architecture: Lincolnwood 

Todd Hall Pre-k & Kindergarten - 23TRB-626178

Page: 5 of 5

19



Page 1 of 1

QUOTE
CUSTOMER Lincolnwood Todd Hall

WORKPLACE CONSULTANT Alex Carsi x50 DATE 3/5/23

CUSTOMER SERVICE Kris Kolek x22 TERMS 50% Deposit / Net 30

DESIGNER PROJECT

SEQ # QTY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT EXTENDED

CH-1 60 Smith System Flavors Chair - 14" 95.85                         5,751.00                   
11847
Shell: Apple
Frame: Platinum
Glides: Steel

CH-2 141 Smith System Flavors Chair - 12" 90.45                         12,753.45                 
11846
Shell: Apple
Frame: Platinum
Glides: Steel

T-8 19 Smith System Silhouette Student Desk 20 x 27 x 19-31" 253.13                       4,809.47                   
1650
Laminate: Classic Linen
Base: Platinum
Edge: Persian Blue
Locking Casters
1 1/4" Top

M-1 10 Media Technologies Stowaway Cabinet & Cupboard Storage 18"W x 28"D x 42"H, Mobile 1,405.92                   14,059.20                 
PCR-1842-MOB-LL-H3P2A
951-904327-000
HPL top, HPL construction, H3 Concealed style hinge, P2 Nickel style pull, Alike lock,
Mobile Technology Cart with door, 3mm PVC edges, right side pull-out
worksurface, powder coated 18 gauge steel perforated front panel and 14 gauge
1" x 1" welded steel frame, twin-wheel locking casters
Loop Pull: Nickel
HPL Top: Wilsonart Grey Mesh 4877
PVC Top Rehau C600244 Silver Grey
HPL Case/Door: Wilsonart Harvest Maple 7953
PVC Case/Door: Rehau CP 40003 Solar Oak
Powder Coat: 809 Silver
Hinges: H3 Concealed
Casters: Gray
Pulls: P2

M-2 1 Whitney Brothers Cubbies 768.69                       768.69                       
10 Section Coat Locker
WB0196A
Finish: Wood TBD

F-1 1 Freight 2,223.42                   2,223.42                   

S-1 1 Surcharge 466.28                       466.28                       

L-1 1 Labor - Prevailing Wage 6,166.80                   6,166.80                   
Receive, deliver and install during normal business hours, Mon. - Fri. 
1 delivery. Add $350 per additional delivery. 

LEADTIMES: 
Smith System: 10 Days
Media Technologies: 9-10 Weeks
Whitney Brothers: In Stock

E&I Contract used for Smith System Items

Material 38,141.81           
To accept this order please sign and return. -                    

Sales Tax 8.00% -                    
X Freight 2,223.42             
Print Name: Labor 6,166.80             
PO Number: Design -                    

Surcharge 466.28               
TOTAL 46,998.31$          

Pre-K & Kindergarten Furniture

Product stored longer than 30 days will result in storage fees
Deposit required at time of order - Leasing options available - This quote is valid for 30 days

Storage fees are included for the first 30 days from receipt of product

20



DATE:  March 21, 2023

TOPIC: Rutledge Hall’s Library & Grades 4-5 Reading Nook Furniture

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited

Recommended for:

☒ Action

☒ Discussion

☒ Information

Background:

The Board of Education approves purchases over $10,000. After months of planning, discussion and review, 

StudioGC has secured quotes from three (3) furniture vendors in an effort to complete the library furniture 

and 4th/5th grade rocking chair installations during the summer of 2023. Product quotes are attached.

Fiscal Impact:

$73,465.61 (Henricksen)

$12,948.00 (KI Company)

$87,535.75 (Bradford)

====================

$173,949.36 Total

Recommendation:

The Facilities Committee concurs with the Administration to recommend to the Board of Education to 

accept the quotes from Henricksen, KI and Bradford for Rutledge Hall furniture in the total amount of 

$173,949.36 to be installed during the summer of 2023.

Executive Summary
Facilities Committee Meeting

21



223 W. Jackson Blvd. Client: Lincolnwood SD74
Suite 1200 Project Name: Rutledge Hall LRC
Chicago, IL  60606 FF&E
P:  (312) 253-3400   Project No.: 22066

Project Architect: Athi Toufexis

$87,535.75Shelving
Bradford

$12,948.00Student Chairs & Tables
KI

PROPOSAL SUMMARY WORKSHEET

Miscellaneous Furniture
Henricksen

Furniture Areas Total Proposal Amount

$73,465.61

Project Total $173,949.36

Remarks

 Page 1 P:\Lincolnwood SD 74\22066 - 2023 TH RH LH General Work\F-Bid Negotiation\Quotes\Proposal Tab-22066 Rutledge Hall LRC FFE

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Studio GC - Rutledge LRC
CREATED 1/29/2023 | REVISED 1/30/2023 | Valid Through 3/30/2023

QUOTATION: AA35-2220/C

31



PRODUCT TOTALS $11,148.00
See Quote Detail Summary $1,800.00
GRAND TOTAL $12,948.00

Requested Delivery Date: To be Determined

KI is pleased to present the enclosed 
quotation. The following items are 
included:

• Quote 
• Summary
• Itemized Quote
• Detailed PO requirements
• Product Options

Studio GC - Rutledge LRC

Quote Number: AA35-2220/C

CREATED 1/29/2023  |  REVISED 1/30/2023  |  Valid Through 3/30/2023

Client Notes:

Ship To
To be Determined

Installation
To be Determined

Sold To
To be Determined

End User
To be Determined

Page: 1 of 3

32



CREATED 1/29/2023
VALID THROUGH 3/30/2023
Prepared By Anson Arndt
Quote Filename Studio GC - Rutledge LRC - AA35-2220/C

Line Model Qty. List Price Extended 
List Price

Discount 
Percent Sell Price Extended Total TBD 

Options

1.1 RKV100H18BR Ruckus,Stack Chair,w/Casters,Poly,Armless,18"H,w/Bookbag 
Rack

25 $428.00 $10,700.00 52.000 $205.44 $5,136.00

Poly Color Compliance to TB 117-2013 /NFR
Poly NFR Nordic /PND
Frame Color Light Tone /LG
Bookrack Color Zesty Lime /BRZL
Caster Option Carpet casters /CCC

 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 2 - 4 Weeks;  Ships from GREEN BAY, WI                 
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 1/30/2023 and is subject to change.

1.2 RDEEZ39-73P Ruckus,Sit Height Adjustable Post-Leg Desk 19-1/2 to 32-
1/2",Large Oddquad,3/4"Top,73P Edge,24x39"

25 $501.00 $12,525.00 52.000 $240.48 $6,012.00

Edge Color Nordic edge /END
Laminate Color KI Laminates Standard
KI Laminates ITALIAN SILVER ASH 8217-38 /LIT
Base Finish Light Tone /LG
Caster/Glides Casters /CCC
Under Table Storage No book storage /NB

 Price Description: Delivered/Open Market
 Lead Time: 3 - 5 Weeks;  Ships from BONDUEL, WI                   
 Please Note: Leadtime calculated on 1/30/2023 and is subject to change.

WorkGroup Product Subtotal $11,148.00
  
Quote Summary

Product SubTotal: $11,148.00
Installation: $1,800.00

Estimated Sales Tax: See Notes
Quote Total: $12,948.00

NOTES:
• Images shown above are intended for approximate visual reference only and may not represent the exact models, numbers, descriptions or options selected. Refer to the 

model number/description/options shown for full product specifications.
• Sales Tax (For Shipment within the United States Only): Estimated sales/use tax will be calculated when order is entered.  It is the customer's responsibility to pay any 

applicable sales/use tax due upon invoicing.  A customer will not be charged sales tax if (1) a Resale Certificate, (2) an Exempt Organization Certificate, or (3) a Direct Pay 
permit is on file with KI's Finance Department.  If no certificate is on file, the appropriate sales/use tax rate in effect at shipment will be applied and tax will be added to the 
customer's invoice.

PROJECT LEAD TIME SUMMARY:

• Manufacturing lead time begins once the order is complete and acknowledged. Delivery dates are determined per order based on the longest lead time per shipping location 
and are confirmed on the order acknowledgement.
Shipping Location MFG Lead Time Range

GREEN BAY, WI                 2 - 4 Weeks

BONDUEL, WI                   3 - 5 Weeks

• Lead times are subject to change based on quantities, manufacturing capacity and surface material selections. Laminate and/or fabrics outside the standard KI ingrade 
program may have extended lead time.

• For more information or questions regarding delivery consolidation, contact KI Customer Service.

Page: 2 of 3

33



Final Considerations:
To ensure your Purchase Order (PO) is processed quickly and efficiently, please adhere to the 
following requirements:

1. All purchase orders must be issued to KI or KI c/o the dealer with this address:
KI
1330 Bellevue Street
Green Bay, WI 54302

2. The following items must be included on all purchase orders:
◦ Sold To/Bill To Information: complete legal name, address, telephone number and fax 

number
◦ Ship To Information: complete legal name, address, contact name, contact phone 

number
◦ Purchase Order Number: a customer-specific identifier, typically a sequential purchase 

order number or requisition number
◦ Issue Date: date the purchase order was issued
◦ Sales Tax: applicable sales tax will be added upon KI invoicing. If tax exempt, customer 

must provide or have the tax exempt certificate on file at KI
◦ Purchase Order Total: total of all items and services included on the purchase order
◦ Authorization: signature of authorized purchasing agent or buying entity
◦ Order Details: reference a fully optioned KI quote (ex: 11KGH-85432) or include all the 

information listed below
▪ Quantity of each item
▪ Complete model number, including all finish and option information (by line item)
▪ Net purchase price (by line item)
▪ Extended net purchase price (all line items)
▪ Any additional applicable charges (ex: installation and/or delivery charges)
▪ Contract name and/or number if pricing is based on a contract reference

         3.      Signatures on a quote or a worksheet cannot be accepted as a purchase order.

         4.      In the event that you do not have a formal Purchase Order process, please contact your KI 
     Sales Representative or call 1-800-424-2432, and we will assist you with creating a PO. 

We appreciate your cooperation in providing us with all the required information listed above on 
your Purchase Order. Complete information helps us serve you better. Thank you for your order. 

Purchase Orders that do not meet these requirements will be placed on hold until 
complete information is received by KI.  Purchase orders on hold are not released to 
manufacturing or assigned a delivery date. KI order lead times begin once the order is 
released to manufacturing.

Customer represents that the product 
information contained within this quote is 
complete and accurate. Changes to quantities 
and/or options/finishes will affect this quote. If 
applicable, other charges such as freight, tax, 
installation and/or delivery fees may be added 
at time of order.

Sales resulting from purchase orders issued by 
the customer to KI (Whether related to this 
quotation or otherwise) are governed and 
controlled by the Terms and Conditions found 
at www.KI.com/terms

Prepared by Anson Arndt
Market Code: 2=2=K-12

Opportunity #: 
Quote Filename: Studio GC - Rutledge LRC - AA35-2220

Page: 3 of 3

34



  

          Corporate Headquarters 
          945 N. Oaklawn Avenue 
          Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
 
          630-350-3453 office 
          630-350-3454 fax 
          800-696-3454 toll-free 

           Indiana Office 
          6231 Coffman Road 
          Indianapolis, Indiana 46268 
 
          317-895-0670 office 
          317-895-0672 fax 
          800-696-3454 toll-free 

          St. Louis Office 
          1735 Larkin Williams Road 
          Fenton, Missouri 63026 
 
          636-343-1515 office 
          636-343-3588 fax 
          800-696-3454 toll-free 

 

 
 

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Book Carts, Library Shelving 
Revised 3-3-23 

 
Prepared for: 

Courtney Whited 
 

Rutledge Hall  
6850 Prairie Road 

Lincolnwood, IL 60712 
 
 

Submitted by: 
Bob Fanello  

847-344-9207 
bob@bradfordsystems.com 

 
Bradford Systems Corporation 
945 North Oaklawn Avenue 

Elmhurst, IL 60126 
 

March 3, 2023 
BSC Project #40250 

 
 

Bradford Systems Corporation is a qualified Sourcewell Contract provider and is proposing the 
following Spacesaver equipment and related services through:  

Contract # 121919-KII 

Lincolnwood School District 74 Member ID #15775 

 

 

35



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 2 March 3, 2023
  
    

 

 

March 3, 2023 
 
Courtney Whited 
Rutledge Hall  
6850 Prairie Road 
Lincolnwood, IL 60712 
 
Dear Ms. Whited: 
 
On behalf of Bradford Systems Corporation, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to present this 
revised proposal.  Based on the design from StudioGC, the following cantilever, cart, shelving and end panel 
solution has been tailored to meet the storage needs for Lincolnwood SD74 Rutledge Hall LRC. In this 
revised proposal, we have added browser boxes to 1-SH1 cart, and 1-SH 2 cart on the bottom 3 rows. We 
have also adjusted the inside end panels on the ganged carts to full laminate. Pricing is based on the 
Sourcewell Cooperative Contract Discounts.  
 
We value the opportunity to present our unique capabilities, and look forward to showing you why thousands 
of clients over the last 54 years have chosen Bradford Systems Corporation to help them solve their most 
challenging storage dilemmas. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this revised proposal or if we can make any changes to better 
accommodate your needs or requirements, please call me at 847-344-9207.   
 
Again, thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Bob Fanello 
Storage Planner 
 
Bradford Systems Corporation  
945 North Oaklawn Avenue 
Elmhurst, IL 60126  
(m) 847-344-9207 
bob@bradfordsystems.com 
 
  

36



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 3 March 3, 2023
  
    

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Book Carts, Library Shelving 
Project #40250 

 
 
Spacesaver Fixed Cantilever Shelving and Mobile Cart Storage Solution: 
 
 
SH-1 DS 48” H Mobile Book Unit (Quantity 4) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $4,559.99/cart 

 Mobile shelving range (to sit on cart with locking casters), 24” deep x 108” wide x 48” high 
Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H, 8.5” x 11” adhesive end panel sign holder 
Bottom Row: 11”deep sloped flat shelf with integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 11” deep flat shelf with 1-9” book support w/full cork base 
Top Row: 11” Zig Zag display shelf 
End Panels: Laminate: Outside Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, ¼-3Form Varia Sandstone, Inside to 
be solid laminate: Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

SH-1A DS 48” H Mobile Book Unit (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $7,514.58/cart 
 Mobile shelving range (to sit on cart with locking casters), 24” deep x 108” wide x 48” high 

Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H, 8.5” x 11” adhesive end panel sign holder 
Bottom Row: 12”deep Cantilever Multi-Media Browsing Box, slotted with 2 dividers 
Middle Rows: 12”deep Cantilever Multi-Media Browsing Box, slotted with 2 dividers 
Top Row: 11” Zig Zag display shelf 
End Panels: Laminate: Outside Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, ¼ 3Form Varia Sandstone, Inside to 
be solid laminate: Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

SH-2 DS 48” H Mobile Book Unit (Quantity 4) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $4,059.72/cart 
 Mobile shelving range (to sit on cart with locking casters), 24” deep x 72” wide x 48” high 

Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H, 8.5” x 11” adhesive end panel sign holder 
Bottom Row: 11”deep sloped flat shelf with integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 11” deep flat shelf with 1-9” book support w/full cork base 
Top Row: 11” Zig Zag display shelf 
End Panels: Laminate: Outside Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, ¼ 3Form Varia Sandstone, Inside to 
be solid laminate: Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 
 

SH-2A DS 48” H Mobile Book Unit (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $5,959.98/cart 
 Mobile shelving range (to sit on cart with locking casters), 24” deep x 72” wide x 48” high 

Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H, 8.5” x 11” adhesive end panel sign holder 
Bottom Row: 12”deep Cantilever Multi-Media Browsing Box, slotted with 2 dividers 
Middle Rows: 12”deep Cantilever Multi-Media Browsing Box, slotted with 2 dividers 
Top Row: 11” Zig Zag display shelf 
End Panels: Laminate: Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, 3Form Varia Sandstone, Inside to be solid 
laminate: Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

 
 
 

37



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 4 March 3, 2023
  
    

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Project #40250 
 
SH-3 DS 48” H Mobile Book Unit (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $3,493.04/cart 

 Mobile shelving range (to sit on cart with locking casters), 24” deep x 36” wide x 48” high 
Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H, 8.5” x 11” adhesive end panel sign holder 
Bottom Row: 11”deep sloped flat shelf with integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 11” deep flat shelf with 1-9” book support w/full cork base 
Top Row: 11” Zig Zag display shelf 
End Panels: Laminate: (2) Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, 1/4 3Form Varia Sandstone 

 
SH-4 SS 66” H (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $4,167.83 

 Fixed shelving range (to sit to sit directly on the floor), 12” deep x 252” wide x 66” high 
Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H 
Bottom Row: 10” sloped base shelf with low integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base  
Top Row: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
End Panels: Laminate: (2) Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

SH-5 SS 66” H (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $3,065.88 
 Fixed shelving range (to sit to sit directly on the floor), 12” deep x 180” wide x 66” high 

Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H 
Bottom Row: 10” sloped base shelf with low integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base  
Top Row: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
End Panels: Laminate: (2) Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 
 

SH-6 SS 66” H (Quantity 1) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $1,973.93 
 Fixed shelving range (to sit to sit directly on the floor), 12” deep x 108” wide x 66” high 

Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H 
Bottom Row: 10” sloped base shelf with low integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base  
Top Row: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
End Panels: Laminate: (2) Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

SH-7 SS 66” H (Quantity 1 includes 2 ranges) Sourcewell Material Each Cost: $7,233.72 
 Fixed shelving range (2 ranges combined to sit to sit directly on the floor), 12” deep x 432” wide x 

66” high 
Includes sign holder w/acrylic insert 4”H 
Bottom Row: 10” sloped base shelf with low integral back, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
Middle Rows: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base  
Top Row: 10” flat shelf, 1- 9” book support w/full cork base 
End Panels: Laminate: (4) Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16 
 

 
 
 

 

38



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 5 March 3, 2023
  
    

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Project #40250 
 
 
System Capacities:  

 10” and 11” deep shelves = 12,348.00 LFI (lineal filing inches) for book storage 
 
*Please refer to attached drawings for layouts and details.  

 
Total Project Investment: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                          *Lead time is approximately 12 weeks from purchase order 
 
 
Notes: 
1. The above quote is based on the drawings. 
2. A non-refundable down payment of one-third (1/3) of the contract, is due upon order.  A payment of 1/3 is due upon shipment 

and 1/3 payment upon completion.   
3. This agreement is based on union labor during a normal eight hour working day Monday through Friday and no provisions 

have been made for overtime or shift premium pay. If overtime is required, additional costs will be incurred. 
4. Pricing valid for 30 days. 
5. All applicable taxes apply. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Storage Materials List (Carts) $24,572.00  
Less Mobile Discount (50.3%) -$12,359.72  
Mobile Materials Net  $12,212.28 
Shelving Materials List $71,093.50  
Less Shelving Discount (50.3%) -$35,760.03  
Shelving Materials Net  $35,333.47 
Buyout Items (End Panels, Signage)  $20,300.00 
Prevailing Wage Installation  $17,000.00 
Freight  $2,690.00 
Total  $87,535.75 

39



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 6 March 3, 2023
  
    

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Project #40250 

 
 

1. Purchase orders should be made out to the following:  
Bradford Systems Corporation   
945 North Oaklawn Avenue 
Elmhurst, IL 60126  
 

2. Purchase orders may be sent via: 
 Email:  purchaseorders@bradfordsystems.com 
 USPS: 945 North Oaklawn Avenue, Elmhurst, IL 60126 
 Facsimile: (630) 350-3454 

 
3. Please send the following in conjunction with your purchase order: 

 Reference BSC project # 40250  on your purchase order 
 Project Information Sheet 
 Signed copy of the proposal and project drawings 

40



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 7 March 3, 2023
  
    

Lincolnwood SD74  
Rutledge Hall LRC 

Project #40250 
 

Purchase Order Information: 

P.O. #:  ______________________________________                                                     

Approved by: _______________________________________ 

 
Project Selections:  

Cantilever Shelving:  __Frost______________________ (See 10 Standard Finishes) 

Laminate End Panels _ Italian Silver Ash 8217K-16, 3Form Varia Sandstone  

 

Delivery Information: 

Delivery Address: _______________________________________                                                     

               _______________________________________ 

Delivery Contact Name:  _______________________________________ 

Contact Phone Number:  _______________________________________ 

Truck or Delivery Time Restrictions:  ____________________________________ 

Delivery Dock:   Yes   No    __________________________ 

Freight Elevator:  Yes   No __________________________ 

 

Order Acknowledgement/Billing Information: 

Order Acknowledgement Required?   Yes   No _________________________ 

Billing Address: _______________________________________ 

                                        _______________________________________ 

Billing Contact Name: _______________________________________ 

Contact Phone Number: _______________________________________ 

Contact Email Address: _______________________________________ 

 

Installation Information: 

Installation Address: _______________________________________ 

                                 _______________________________________ 

Floor/Room:                 _______________________________________ 

Requested Installation Date:   _______________________________________ 

Move Date:  _______________________________________ 

Construction Schedule Available:   Yes   No _____________________________ 

Client Provided Dumpster Available:   Yes   No __________________________ 

Are There Security Requirements:   Yes   No _____________________________ 

Parking: Permission/Permits:   Yes   No _________________________________ 

Certificate of Insurance Required:   Yes   No _____________________________ 

General Contractor Name/Phone:   Yes   No ______________________________  

 
 

41



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 8 March 3, 2023
  
    

 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. GENERAL:  These terms and conditions shall apply to sales from Bradford Systems Corporation to Buyer and to any 
quotation by Bradford Systems Corporation for sales.  These terms and conditions shall not be superseded by any terms 
and conditions in Buyer's order except as otherwise specifically agreed in writing executed by all parties to this 
agreement. The paragraph headings contained herein are for purposes of reference only and are not to be considered in 
the interpretation of any clauses contained herein. This agreement may be executed in counterpart and a copy of this 
agreement shall be as binding as is the original.  

2. ENGINEERING:  The proposal drawings and/or specifications of any quotation are confidential engineering data, and 
represent Bradford Systems Corporation investment in engineering skill and development, and remain the property of 
Bradford Systems Corporation.  Such are submitted with the understanding that the information will not be disclosed or 
used in any manner detrimental to Bradford Systems Corporation.  All specifications and dimensions of proposal 
drawings are approximate, and are subject to changes during detailed engineering. 

3. SURVEYS, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS:  Buyer shall procure and pay for all permits and/or inspections required 
by any governmental authority for any part of the work performed by Bradford Systems Corporation, except as otherwise 
stated. 

4. PAYMENT:  This system has been specially designed and will be specially manufactured for the Buyers unique 
requirements.  A non-refundable down payment of one-third (1/3) of the contract is due upon order.  A payment of 1/3 
is due upon shipment and 1/3 payment upon completion.  One and one-half (1-1/2) percent interest per month will be 
charged on any unpaid balance after thirty (30) days.  If the installation is not entirely complete upon final invoicing, a 
holdback of reasonable value is allowed without incurring interest charges.  A 4% convenience fee will be applied to all 
orders paid with a credit card.  

5. TAXES:  All applicable sales taxes, as required by law, will be billed, unless Bradford Systems Corporation has a current 
Tax Exempt Letter or Resale Certificate on file. 

6. EXPIRATION DATE:  Pricing is valid for thirty (30) days.  After thirty days, a new proposal and revised pricing may 
be required. 

7. CANCELLATION:  On all canceled orders, Buyer shall compensate Bradford Systems Corporation for its performance, 
commitments and damage as follows; Buyer shall pay Bradford Systems Corporation a cancellation fee not to exceed the 
original purchase price. 

8. CHANGE ORDERS:  Should the Buyer order changes or additions to the work, such orders and adjustments shall be 
made in writing to Bradford Systems Corporation utilizing Bradford’s formal change order document.  The contract price 
and installation/delivery fees shall be adjusted according to the changes in the work specified in the change order. 

9. INSURANCE:  Bradford Systems Corporation's employees who enter Buyer's premises will have Workmen's 
Compensation coverage in statutory limits and Bradford Systems Corporation's automobiles will be covered by Public 
Liability and Property Damage Insurance. 

10. DELIVERY:  Installation or delivery date is approximate.  Bradford Systems Corporation shall not be liable for delays 
in or failures of delivery due to changes requested by Buyer, or causes beyond its control.  If shipment is delayed at the 
request of Buyer, payment shall be made by Buyer as though shipment had been made as specified and for any expenses 
incurred by Bradford due to Buyer's request in delaying shipment. 

11. STORAGE:  If product is stored for more than thirty (30) days at Bradford Systems Corporation due to delays in delivery 
caused by buyer, Bradford will charge buyer at the rate of 1% of buyer’s invoice per month pro-rated daily. 

12. DAMAGE:  After product arrival at site, any loss or damage by weather, other trades, fire or other elements, shall be the 
responsibility of the Buyer.  The Buyer agrees to hold Bradford System Corporation harmless for loss for such reasons. 

13. BUYER RECEIVING:  If the Buyer receives product for any reason, the Buyer is responsible for checking the product 
during off-load and noting on the packing slip any damage or possible damage and notifying Bradford Systems 
Corporation immediately.  If Bradford does not receive a written notice and copy of the packing slip within twenty-four 
(24) hours, the Buyer agrees to pay any additional replacement product and delivery costs if a freight claim cannot be 
awarded. 

14. SITE CONDITIONS:  Buyer shall provide Bradford Systems Corporation with a free and clear construction site.  Buyer 
shall remove all material and/or construction from the area.  Buyer will furnish Bradford with adequate electrical power 
to operate tools required for the installation. 

15. UNLOADING, SPOTTING AND STORAGE:  Buyer shall provide Bradford Systems Corporation with adequate 
unloading facilities and sufficient access to same to insure Bradford’s efficient unloading procedure.  Adequate aisles 
shall be provided by the Buyer to provide efficient handling of the materials from the unloading of storage area to 
construction site. 

16. COMMENCEMENT OF INSTALLATION:  Bradford Systems Corporation will not be obligated to commence work at 
job site until receipt of written notice from Buyer that Buyer's building is ready for use and necessary utilities and 
equipment are supplied thereto.  

42



 
 
 

www.BradfordSystems.com Page 9 March 3, 2023
  
    

17. COMPLETION:  Installation shall be deemed completed upon acceptance or use of any equipment by Buyer. 
18. OVERTIME:  This agreement is based on a normal eight hour working day Monday through Friday and no provisions 

have been made for overtime or shift premium pay. If overtime is required, additional costs will be incurred. 

19. TESTING:  All material and equipment for testing the installation shall be provided at Buyer's expense.  At the time 
when Bradford Systems Corporation states to the Buyer that the work is complete, the Buyer will inspect the work and 
if the work is in conformity with the terms and provisions of the proposal, the Buyer shall accept the same and deliver to 
Bradford a signed statement of acceptance.  If the Buyer declines to sign such a statement, then the Buyer shall 
immediately inform Bradford in writing of the reasons for such declination.  If the Buyer fails to so notify Bradford of if 
the Buyer fails to make such inspection the work shall be conclusively deemed to have been accepted by the Buyer. 

 

PROJECT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. FLOOR COVERING:  If Bradford Systems Corporation is not the contractor for the installation of the floor covering, 

Buyer’s floor covering contractor is responsible for coordinating floor covering installation after Bradford installs system 
rail and floor. 

2. FLOOR LOADING:  Buyer is responsible for the load bearing capacity of the floor upon which the proposed installation 
shall be constructed.  Floor load data that applies to the project is subject to interpretation by a certified structural 
engineer.  BSC is providing reference data for determining load and distribution conditions.  Floor load and 
considerations are to be reviewed and evaluated by a qualified engineer.  It is the responsibility of client to have this 
system approved for the floor loading if needed.  If media weight is unknown; we recommend a sample weight be verified 
in the field.   

3. FLOOR DRILLING:  Buyer is responsible to notify Bradford Systems Corporation of any electrical or other obstructions 
located in the floor and Buyer is responsible for relocating said obstructions at Buyer’s expense.  Anchoring and/or 
hammer drilling may be required to which it is the Buyers responsibility to notify Bradford if there are any building 
restrictions on when this work may be performed.  

4. SEISMIC:  Buyer is responsible for determining if a seismic evaluation is necessary at which Bradford Systems 
Corporation will provide all equipment information for a seismic evaluation by an engineer if applicable. 

5. FIRE CODE:  Fire code typically requires an 18” minimum clearance between installed height of shelving system and 
any sprinkler system.  It is the Buyer’s responsibility to verify that the proposed shelving system height meets this 
requirement prior to the placement of purchase order. 

6. SPACESAVER WARRANTY:  A 5-year standard warranty and 1-year scheduled maintenance are included with your 
installation. Extended warranty and maintenance agreements are available upon request.  

7. SPACESAVER SYSTEM TRAINING & ORIENTATION:  Bradford Systems Corporation offers training to all potential 
users to insure safe and efficient system operation upon the Buyer’s request. 

 
 
 
 
 
          

Client Signature                                             Title                                                           Date 

 

COPYRIGHT:  Copyright © Bradford Systems Corporation.  This material is proprietary and confidential.  The disclosure 
reproduction by photography, film, blueprint or otherwise or incorporation into any information retrieval system without first 
receiving written approval from Bradford System Corporation is expressly prohibited by law.  

43



DATE:  March 21, 2023

TOPIC: 2023 Site Work Bid Results (Todd Hall Courtyard & Lincoln Hall Plaza)

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited

Recommended for:

☒ Action

☒ Discussion

☒ Information

Purpose/Background:

Only one proposal was received for the Summer 2023 Site Work on the Todd Hall Courtyard and 

Lincoln Hall Plaza. Since the cost will be much greater than anticipated, a discussion is necessary to 

determine how to proceed.

Fiscal Impact:

$1,336,000 Base Bid with a $100,000 contingency

$  85,000 Alternate 1: Playground equipment installation

$  13,000 Alternate 2: Stainless steel rails in the LH Plaza instead of painted metal

Recommendation:

This summary is for informational purposes. The Administration requests direction from the Facilities 

Committee on the Action to recommend to the Board of Education.

Executive Summary
Facilities Committee Meeting

44



223 West Jackson Boulevard 
Suite 1200 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Phone: (312) 253-3400  

 
 
 

P:\Lincolnwood SD 74\22123 - 2023 Site Renovations\F-Bid Negotiation\_Bids\LReview_22123-BearCC.docx 
 

March 16, 2023 
 
 
Mrs. Courtney Whited 
Business Manager/CSBO 
Lincolnwood School District 74 
6950 N. East Prairie Road 
Lincolnwood, IL 60712 
 
RE: 2023 Sitework Renovations 
 Project No. 22123 
  
Dear Mrs. Whited: 
 
Bids for the above referenced project were received at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, March 14, 2023. 
There were four (4) bidders of record; one (1) bid was received. A bid tabulation sheet is herein 
attached for your review.  
 
We have analyzed the bid and the qualifications of the bidder and recommend that if the Board 
of Education choose to move forward with this project, the contract for the 2023 Sitework 
Renovations project be awarded to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, BEAR Construction 
Company. Their total base bid proposal is for $1,336,000.00. This includes allowance monies in 
the amount of $100,000.00 which will be returned to the school district if not used at the end of 
the project.  
 
Contractors were also asked to provide pricing for two alternates. BEAR Construction Company 
provided the following prices:   
 

1. Install playground equipment. (+ $85,000.00).  
2. Provide stainless steel railings in lieu of painted galvanized (+ $13,000.00).  

 
The Facilities Committee may choose to accept or reject any alternates. If alternates no. 1 and 2 
are included, BEAR Construction Company’s total bid amount equals $1,434,000.00. If alternate 
no. 1 only is included, BEAR Construction Company’s total bid amount equals $1,421,000.00. 
 
The received bid is higher than previous estimates presented on the Master Facilities Plan. Studio 
GC will be at the Facilities Committee Meeting to further discuss the bid results with the 
committee. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.  
 
 
 45



223 West Jackson Boulevard 
Suite 1200 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Phone: (312) 253-3400  

 
 
 

P:\Lincolnwood SD 74\22123 - 2023 Site Renovations\F-Bid Negotiation\_Bids\LReview_22123-BearCC.docx 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Athi Toufexis, AIA, ALEP, LEED-AP 
 
Enclosure – Bid Tabulation 
 

46



223 W. Jackson Blvd. Client: Lincolnwood School District 74
Suite 1200 Project Name: 2023 Sitework Renovations
Chicago, IL  60606
P:  (312) 253-3400   Project No.:

Bid Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 @ 10:00 a.m. 
Project Architect: Athi Toufexis

Total Bid Addendum Bid
Amount #1 #2 #3 #4 #5 Bond

Alt. No. 1 Alt. No. 2

Alt. No. 1 Alt. No. 2

Alt. No. 1 Alt. No. 2

Alt. No. 1 Alt. No. 2

Alt. No. 1: Install playground equipment.

Alt. No. 2: Provide stainless steel railings in lieu of painted galvanized.

Murphy Construction 
1-630-654-8242

Master Design Build

$1,336,000.00
$85,000.00

X

NO BID

1-847-222-1900

D. Kersey Construction Company
1-847-919-4980

Bear Construction
X X XX X

$13,000.00

NO BID

NO BID

Alternates

22123

BID TAB WORKSHEET

Contractor Remarks

 Page 1 P:\Lincolnwood SD 74\22123 - 2023 Site Renovations\F-Bid Negotiation\_Bids\22123_Bid Tab22123_Bid Tab 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



DATE:  March 21, 2023

TOPIC:  Window Treatments Bid Results

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited

Recommended for:

☒ Action

☒ Discussion

☒ Information

Background:

Rutledge Hall lacks window treatments throughout the entire building. Todd Hall has roller shades in the 

classrooms but lacks them in other areas. The District issued a request for window treatment proposals on 

February 9, 2023 and held a non-mandatory pre-bid meeting on February 21. One vendor attended the pre-bid 

meeting but did not submit a bid. One bid from Tiles In Style was opened on March 8.

Administration, in partnership with Studio GC, followed up by calling references, in addition to contacting Tiles 

In Style directly. Two of the three references cited positive experiences relative to Tiles In Style completing 

their projects on time and within budget. The third reference explained that Tiles In Style/Taza Construction 

used a sub-contractor for their window shade installation in a banquet hall. The proposal is based on a roller 

shade product that is similar to those existing in Todd Hall but not the same. The cost listed is $13,000 more 

than anticipated. The District Administration recommends rejecting the bid.

Fiscal Impact:

$0

(Proposal’s fixed price is $73,000 while the expected cost was estimated at $60,000)

Recommendation:

The Facilities Committee concurs with the Administration to recommend to the Board of Education to reject 

the bid in the amount of $73,000 from Tiles in Style LLC DBA Taza Construction for Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall 

Window Treatments.

Executive Summary
Facilities Committee Meeting

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



LEGAL NOTICE
REQUEST FOR BIDS

Lincolnwood School District No. 74 is requesting sealed bids for Todd Hall and Rutledge
Hall Window Treatments. Bids will be received by the Business Manager/CSBO at the
Administrative Center located at 6950 N. East Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood IL 60712, until 2:00
p.m. prevailing time on Wednesday, March 8, 2023.

Instructions and specifications will be available beginning Thursday, February 9, 2023,
from Lincolnwood School District No. 74, Attn: Courtney Whited, cwhited@sd74.org, (847)
675-8234. A pre-bid meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 21, 2023, at 3:00 p.m. starting at
the Administrative Center. The purpose of this meeting is to address any questions and visit the
two school sites. This will be the only opportunity to visit District facilities; attendance by
potential bidders is encouraged but not mandatory. Bidders must submit all questions in writing
to Courtney Whited at the above email address. Replies will be issued to all bidders of record in
the form of an addendum. Questions received less than five (5) weekdays before the bid due
date cannot be answered.

All bids must be accompanied by a Bid Bond in the form of a surety bond issued by a
bonding company authorized to do business in Illinois, and on the U.S. Department of Treasury
list of approved sureties, or a certified check or a cashier's check drawn on a bank authorized to
do business in Illinois, made payable to the Board of Education in the amount of ten percent
(10%) of the sum of the computed total amount of the bid. By submitting a bid, it is agreed that
the Bid Bond will be forfeited if the bidder fails to execute the agreement or to furnish the
Performance and Payment Bonds (for the modernization work) in conformity with the
specifications within ten (10) days after notification of the award of the Agreement to such
bidder.

Each bidder expressly agrees that such bid may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty
(60) days from the opening thereof. Withdrawal within such period shall subject the bidder to
penalties and damages to the District to the extent that such withdrawal results in loss to the
District.

The Board of Education reserves the right to reject any and all bids or any part thereof,
to waive any informalities, errors or irregularity in bids received or in the bidding process, and to
accept the bid or bids that the Board of Education deems the most favorable to its interest after
all bids have been examined and canvassed.

John P. Vranas
Secretary, Board of Education
Lincolnwood School District
No. 74, Cook County, Illinois

138

mailto:cwhited@sd74.org


NOTICE AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR
Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments

Lincolnwood School District No. 74

INSTRUCTIONS TO ALL BIDDERS

1.1 District Information. Lincolnwood School District No. 74 is a public elementary school

district with an approximate enrollment of 1,250 students. The District operates three (3) school

buildings and one (1) administrative center. All are located on a single campus in the Village of

Lincolnwood, approximately 10 miles north of downtown Chicago, in Cook County, Illinois.

Two school buildings contain existing window treatments, both of which are the subject of this

bid:

● Todd Hall, 3925 W. Lunt Avenue, Lincolnwood, IL 60712

● Rutledge Hall, 6850 N. East Prairie Road, Lincolnwood, IL 60712

1.2 Request for Bids. The Board of Education of Lincolnwood School District No. 74

(hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Board” or “School District” or “Owner”) will receive

bids for the replacement of the Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall window treatments in accordance

with these instructions and the specifications set forth below. Bids will be received until 2:00

p.m. prevailing time on Wednesday, March 8, 2023, at the Administrative Center located at 6950

N. East Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood IL 60712.

1.3 Pre-bid Meeting: A pre-bid meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 21, 2023, at 3:00

p.m. starting at the Administrative Center, 6950 N. East Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood IL 60712. The

purpose of this meeting is to address any questions and visit the two school sites. This will be the

only opportunity to visit District facilities. Attendance by potential bidders is strongly

encouraged but not mandatory.

2
139



1.4 Questions. Bidders must submit all questions regarding these instructions and

specifications in writing to Courtney Whited, Lincolnwood School District No. 74,,

cwhited@sd74.org. Replies will be issued to all bidders of record in the form of an Addendum.

Questions received less than five (5) weekdays before the bid due date cannot be answered.

1.5 Bid Form. All bids must be submitted in duplicate on the Bid Form, a copy of which is

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, provided by the School District. The wording of the Bid Form

shall not be changed or altered.

1.6 Anticipated Bidding Schedule:

EVENT PROJECTED DATE
Request for Bids Issuance: February 9, 2023
Pre-Bid Meeting: February 21, 2023, 3:00 p.m.
Last date to request clarifications: March 1, 2023
Bids Due: March 8, 2023, 2:00 p.m.
Presentation to Facilities Committee: March 21, 2023
Board of Education Approval: April 6, 2023
Commencement of Work: June 12, 2023
Substantial Completion: July 21, 2023

1.7 Pricing. Each bidder expressly agrees that its pricing may not be withdrawn for a period

of sixty (60) days from the bid due date. Withdrawal within such period shall subject the

proposer to penalties and damages to the District to the extent that such withdrawal results in loss

to the District. All bidders must state their rates and charges in fixed dollar amounts which are

definitely ascertainable at the time of opening the bids.

1.8 Bid Security. Bids shall be accompanied by a Bid Security. Such Bid Security shall be

in the form of a Bid Bond or Cashier’s Check for 10% of the Bid Price made in favor of the

Board. Failure to submit the proper form and amount of Bid Security may result in rejection of

the Bid. Bid Bonds must be issued by the same company that provides the Performance Bond

and Payment Bond under Specification A. The Bidder agrees that the proceeds of the Bid

3
140

mailto:cwhited@sd74.org


Security will become the property of the Board if for any reason the bidder withdraws his bid

prior to the time period noted in the Bid Form. The defaulting bidder shall pay the Board all

costs which exceed the amount of the Bid Security for procuring the performance for the work

required by the bidding documents. Such costs include, but are not limited to, additional

advertising and architectural and engineering services and legal services.

1.9 Term and Commencement. The replacement of the existing window treatments with new

shall commence no earlier than June 12, 2023 and shall be substantially completed by July 21,

2023. Existing window treatments are not to be removed until new window treatments are

on-site and ready to be installed.

1.10 Insurance. The successful bidder shall maintain insurance in the following amounts

during the term of any agreement entered into pursuant to this Request for Bids: (1) commercial

general liability insurance on an occurrence basis in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 er

occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; (2) workers compensation coverage in the minimum

statutory amounts and no less than $500,000; (3) comprehensive auto liability insurance,

including hired and non-owned vehicles, in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and in the

aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; and (4) umbrella or excess liability coverage in

a minimum amount of $2,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate. The successful bidder

shall name the School District, its Board members, employees, and agents as additional insureds

on all policies except workers compensation. The successful bidder’s insurance shall be primary

and noncontributory.

1.11 Bonding. A Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond will be

required in accordance with the Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550/1, for the

4
141



modernization work performed under Specification A. The cost of said bond, in the amount of

110% of the cost of the work, shall be included in the bid price.

1.12 Reservation of Rights. The Board of Education reserves the right to reject any and all

bids or any part thereof, to waive any informalities, errors or irregularity in bids received or in

the bidding process, and to accept the bid or bids that the Board of Education deems the most

favorable to its interest after all proposals have been examined and canvassed. Expenses

incurred in responding to this request for bids are not the responsibility of the School District.

1.13 Required Documentation. If any credit applications or other documents will be

required prior to contract execution, such documents must be submitted with the proposal. The

final agreement shall be subject to Illinois law without regard to conflicts of laws principles.

Dispute resolution terms shall be limited to litigation in the Circuit Court of Cook County,

Illinois, and the successful bidder must agree to be subject to the jurisdiction of that court.

References to mediation or arbitration shall be deleted. Payment terms shall be in accordance

with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1 et seq.). This Request

for Bids shall be deemed incorporated into the parties’ final agreement.

1.14 Applicable Laws. All bidders shall at all times observe and comply with all

applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations, including, but not limited to, the Illinois

Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS § 130/1 et seq.); the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS § 5/1

et seq.); The Equal Employment Opportunity Clause at Title 44, Part 750 of the Illinois

Administrative Code (see 44 Ill. Admin. Code 750.20), which is fully incorporated herein; the

Equal Employment Opportunity Act (42 U.S.C. § 2000e); and the Illinois Criminal Code (720

ILCS § 5/1 et al.). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, as required by the Criminal

Code, 720 ILCS § 5/33E-11, each bidder certifies that it is not barred from contracting with any

5
142



unit of state or local government as a result of a violation of any criminal statute including, but

not limited to, the bid rigging (Section 33E-3) or bid rotating (Section 33E-4) provisions of the

Criminal Code. The bidder agrees that if this certification is false, the School District may

declare the resulting agreement void. Each bidder further certifies that it will provide a drug free

workplace as required by the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act, 30 ILCS §§ 580/1 et seq.

Additionally, the Board is exempt from paying Illinois Use Tax, Illinois Retailer’s Occupation

Tax, Federal Excise Taxes, and any federal transportation tax, thus, no taxes shall be included in

the bid price. If applicable, the bidder shall collect and remit Illinois Use Tax on all sales of

tangible personal property into the State of Illinois in accordance with the provisions of the

Illinois Use Tax Act (35 §§ ILCS 105/1 et seq.), regardless of whether the bidder is a retailer

maintaining a place of business within this State” as defined in Section 2 of the Illinois Use Tax

Act.

1.15 Indemnification. If selected, the successful bidder agrees to indemnify, defend and

hold harmless the Board of Education, its individual Board members, employees and agents from

and against any and all costs (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and court costs), losses,

fines, penalties, causes of action, and damages, whether to person or property, resulting from,

connected with or arising from any negligent acts or omissions of the bidder or any breach of the

parties’ agreement.

1.16 Additional Information. Bidders are encouraged to provide a summary of their

company’s on-line reporting and invoicing capabilities, including web-based account specific

reporting, web-based Customer Account Information, and web-based invoicing. Samples of

these reports or invoices should be included with the bids.

6
143



Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments

2.1 The Board requests bids for the Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments in

accordance with the following Scope of Work.

2.2 Provide all labor and material necessary to replace the existing Todd Hall and Rutledge

Hall window treatments as indicated below:

2

2.1

2.2

A. Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall:

1. Remove existing window treatment systems in their entirety at areas
indicated on enclosed plans, noted as Exhibit “C”.

2. Furnish and install new window treatments at areas indicated on
enclosed, noted as Exhibit “C”.

3. Provide roller window shades per specifications section 122413
enclosed, noted as Exhibit “B”.

B. General

1. Removal of existing window treatments: Unless otherwise indicated, all
equipment that is removed or demolished and not to be re-used becomes the
property of the Contractor, and is to be promptly removed from the project
site and disposed of in an approved manner.

2. Code – All systems to be installed in accordance with 2018 Illinois
Accessibility Code, 2010 Americans with Disabilities Act and all other
applicable codes.

2.3 Performance and Payment Bond. Contractor within ten (10) days after receiving notice

of the award shall furnish a Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bond, in the amount

of 110% of the cost of the work, agreeing to perform the work and fulfill all obligations in

accordance with all of the provisions of the contract with a surety rated no less than B+ 10 by

Best’s Insurance Guide Key, and naming Owner as a primary co-obligee. Such bonds shall be in

7
144



a form and with a surety acceptable to the Owner and shall not include a limitation period shorter

than that provided by Illinois law (735 ILCS 5/13-214). The cost of each bond shall be included

in the bid price. All bonds shall include a specific obligation of the Surety to guarantee the

faithful performance of the Contractor under the Illinois Prevailing Wage Law. The Bonding

Company must also be licensed in the State of Illinois. The Performance Bond and the Labor

and Material Payment Bond shall guarantee the performance of the duties placed on the

Contractor pursuant to the contract with the Owner, and shall indemnify the Owner from any

liability or loss resulting to the Owner from any failure of the Contractor fully to perform each or

all of said duties. The Performance Bond and the Labor and Material Payment Bond shall be

deemed to cover all such duties. The Performance Bond and Labor and Material Bonds shall be

executed in conformity with American Institute of Architects, Doc. A312. A certified copy of

the power of attorney from the Surety Company stating that the person executing the bond is

duly authorized by the Surety to execute the bond shall accompany the bond. The bonds shall

comply with the Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550/1.

2.4 Performance of the Work. The School District and the successful bidder shall agree on

the best timeline for the performance of the work. The replacement of the existing window

treatments with new shall commence no earlier than June 12, 2023 and shall be substantially

completed by July 21, 2023. Existing window treatments are not to be removed until new

window treatments are on-site and ready to be installed.

8
145



EXHIBIT A – BID FORM

Lincolnwood School District No. 74
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS

After having read all the specifications and instructions for bidders and understanding
same, I hereby submit the following bid(s) for the Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window
Treatments project of School District No. 74 in accordance with said Specifications,
including bonds and insurance as stated in the Specifications:

FIXED PRICE
Including all parts, labor, materials,
supplies, tools, equipment, and
consumables.

$
I acknowledge that should this firm be selected, this firm will enter into an agreement
substantially in accordance with the terms described in the specifications and subject to
approval by the legal counsel for School District No. 74.

SIGNED DATE

PRINT NAME OF SIGNATORY PRINT TITLE OF SIGNATORY

COMPANY NAME FEIN

ADDRESS PHONE

CITY STATE ZIP FAX

NAME OF CONTACT PERSON CONTACT PERSON’S EMAIL

Bid Form - Page 1 of 5
146



EXHIBIT A – BID FORM

REFERENCES

Provide up to five (5) references of Illinois based school district, government, or
commercial customers with similar projects that you have completed within the last (5)
years:

School District Contact Name,
Address

Contact
Phone, Email

Project

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 74
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY AND ALL BIDS OR ANY PART
THEREOF, TO WAIVE ANY INFORMALITIES, ERRORS OR IRREGULARITY IN BIDS
RECEIVED OR IN THE BIDDING PROCESS, AND TO ACCEPT THE BID OR BIDS
THAT THE BOARD OF EDUCATION DEEMS THE MOST FAVORABLE TO ITS
INTEREST AFTER ALL BIDS HAVE BEEN EXAMINED AND CANVASSED. THE
BOARD RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ENTER INTO DISCUSSIONS OR
NEGOTIATIONS WITH ONE OR MORE QUALIFIED VENDORS AT ANY TIME.

Initialed:
SIGNATORY COMPANY DATE

BID SECURITY

A bid security in the form of a Bid Bond or cashier’s check in an amount not less than
10% of the Bid Price is included with this proposal.  Bid Security may be forfeited if a
bidder does not meet specifications.

Signature: Date:

Bid Form - Page 2 of 5
147



EXHIBIT A – BID FORM

ANTI-COLLUSION CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:
(print name)

that he/she is an authorized representative of , (name of
company) the party making the foregoing proposal, that such proposalis genuine and
not collusive, or sham; that said proposer has not colluded, conspired, connived or
agreed, directly or indirectly, with any proposer or person, to put in a sham proposal or
to refrain from proposing, and has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by
agreement or collusion, or communication or conference with any person; to fix the
proposal price element of said proposal, or of that of any other proposer, or to secure
any advantages against any other proposer or any person interested in the proposed
contract.

Signature: Date:

CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY TO BID

(bidder), pursuant to Section 33E-11 of the Illinois
Criminal Code of 1961, as amended, hereby certifies that neither he/she/its partners,
officers, or owners of his/her/its business have been convicted in the past five (5) years
of the offenses of bid-rigging under Section 33E-3 of the Illinois Criminal Code of 1961,
as amended, and that neither he/she/its business has ever been convicted of the
offense of bid-rotating under Section 33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code of 1961, as
amended.

Signature: Date:

COMPLIANCE WITH ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The undersigned hereby certifies that my firm has complied with the requirements of the
Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.), as amended, with respect to
sexual harassment policies and equal employment opportunities.  The terms of that law,
as applicable, are hereby incorporated into this contract.  The Board of Education states
that it is in compliance with said law.

Signature: Date:

Bid Form - Page 3 of 5
148



EXHIBIT A – BID FORM

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq. (“Drug Free Workplace Act”), the undersigned
certifies to the Board of Education it will provide a drug-free workplace by:

1. Publishing a statement: A. notifying employees that unlawful manufacture,
distribution, possession, or use of a controlled substance, including cannabis, is
prohibited in the Contractor’s workplace; B. specifying actions that will be taken against
employees for violations of this prohibition; C. notifying employees that, as a condition
of employment on this contract, employees will: 1. abide by the terms of the statement,
2. notify the Contractor of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in
the workplace, no later than five (5) days after such conviction.

2. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
A. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; B. the Contractor’s policy of maintaining
a drug-free workplace; C. available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee
assistance programs; D. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug
violations.

3. Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement in subsection “1”
to each employee engaged in performance of the contract, and posting it in a prominent
workplace location.

4. Notifying the District within ten days after receiving notice in subsection
“1”, paragraph “C”, part “2”, from an employee, or otherwise receiving actual notice of
such conviction.

5. Imposing a sanction or requiring participation by a convicted employee, in
a drug abuse rehabilitation program, as required by Section 5 of the Drug Free
Workplace Act.

6. Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug
counseling, treatment, and/or rehabilitation is required, and indicating that a trained
referral team is in place.

7. Making a good-faith effort to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of Section 3 of the Drug Free Workplace Act.

Failure to abide by this Drug Free Workplace Certification will subject the contractor to
penalties set forth in Sections 6, 7, and 8 of the Drug Free Workplace Act.

For: By:
(company name) (signature)

Its: Date:
(owner, president, partner, etc.)

Bid Form - Page 4 of 5
149



EXHIBIT A – BID FORM

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS
AND SEX OFFENDER DATABASE

The undersigned Contractor shall be responsible for conducting a criminal background
check and a check of the Illinois Statewide Sex Offender Database as to all persons
working within a school building or other indoor facility used for school purposes, and
areas outside buildings and facilities, whether owned, leased or contracted by the
School District.  This includes all employees of the Contractor or any sub-contractor, all
independent contractors, casual laborers, workers obtained through union halls or hiring
halls, and all other individuals present on the School District’s Property at any time
during the performance of the Contract.  No person shall be permitted to work on or
within the School District’s property who: 1)  has been convicted of any of the
enumerated criminal or drug offenses found in 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9(c), or  2) has been
convicted, within seven (7) years of the date of this Certificate of Compliance, of any
other felony under the laws of the State of Illinois or of any offense committed or
attempted in any other state or against the laws of the United States that, if committed
or attempted in the State of Illinois, would have been punishable as a felony under the
laws of this State, or 3) is on the Illinois Sex Offender Database.  The Contractor must
maintain such records and may be required to submit copies of such records directly to
the School District to verify that the criminal background/sex offender checks have been
performed on all persons working on or within School District property.  All such records
must be updated at least every twelve months.

The School District reserves the right to order the Contractor to remove any person from
the School District’s work who the School District determines to be a threat to safety of
students, School District employees, other workers, parents, visitors, or otherwise.  All
workers must follow School District policies, regulations and rules as to building access
and security.

For: By:
(company name) (signature)

Its: Date:
(owner, president, partner, etc.)

Bid Form - Page 5 of 5
150



LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 EXHIBIT B 
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS  
 

ROLLER WINDOW SHADES  122413 - 1 FEBRUARY 23, 2023 
 

SECTION 122413 - ROLLER WINDOW SHADES 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and 
Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 

1.2 SUMMARY 

A. Section Includes: 

1. Manually operated roller shades with single rollers. 

B. Related Requirements: 

1. Section 061053 "Miscellaneous Rough Carpentry" for wood blocking and grounds for mounting 
roller shades and accessories. 

1.3 ACTION SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data: For each type of product. 

1. Include construction details, material descriptions, dimensions of individual components and 
profiles, features, finishes, and operating instructions for roller shades. 

B. Shop Drawings: Show fabrication and installation details for roller shades, including shadeband 
materials, their orientation to rollers, and their seam and batten locations. 

C. Samples: For each exposed product and for each color and texture specified, 10 inches long. 

D. Samples for Initial Selection: For each type and color of shadeband material. 

1. Include Samples of accessories involving color selection. 

1.4 MAINTENANCE MATERIAL SUBMITTALS 

A. Furnish extra materials that match products installed and that are packaged with protective covering for 
storage and identified with labels describing contents. 

1. Roller Shades: Full-size units equal to 5 percent of quantity installed for each size, color, and 
shadeband material indicated, but no fewer than two units. 

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Deliver roller shades in factory packages, marked with manufacturer, product name, and location of 
installation using same designations indicated on Drawings. 

151



LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 EXHIBIT B 
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS  
 

ROLLER WINDOW SHADES  122413 - 2 FEBRUARY 23, 2023 
 

1.6 FIELD CONDITIONS 

A. Environmental Limitations: Do not install roller shades until construction and finish work in spaces, 
including painting, is complete and dry and ambient temperature and humidity conditions are maintained 
at the levels indicated for Project when occupied for its intended use. 

B. Field Measurements: Where roller shades are indicated to fit to other construction, verify dimensions of 
other construction by field measurements before fabrication and indicate measurements on Shop 
Drawings. Allow clearances for operating hardware of operable glazed units through entire operating 
range. Notify Architect of installation conditions that vary from Drawings. Coordinate fabrication 
schedule with construction progress to avoid delaying the Work. 

1.7 WARRANTY 

A. Special Warranty:  Manufacturer agrees to repair or replace roller shades that fail in materials or 
workmanship within specified warranty period. 

 
1. Warranty Period for roller shades:  Life of installation. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 MANUFACTURERS 

A. Source Limitations: Obtain roller shades from single source from single manufacturer. 

2.2 MANUALLY OPERATED SHADES WITH SINGLE ROLLERS 

A. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements,  provide products by one of the following: 

1. Draper Inc. 
2. Hunter Douglas Contract. 
3. Springs Window Fashions; SWFcontract. 
4. Lutron. 
5. MechoShade.  

B. Chain-and-Clutch Operating Mechanisms: With continuous-loop bead chain and clutch that stops shade 
movement when bead chain is released; permanently adjusted and lubricated. 

1. Bead Chains: Nickel-plated metal. 

a. Loop Length: bottom of loop to be 36 inches above finish floor level. 
b. Limit Stops: Provide upper and lower ball stops. 
c. Chain-Retainer Type: Clip, jamb mount. 

2. Spring Lift-Assist Mechanisms: Manufacturer's standard for balancing roller shade weight and for 
lifting heavy roller shades. 

a. Provide for shadebands that weigh more than 10 lb  or for shades as recommended by 
manufacturer, whichever criterion is more stringent. 

152



LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 EXHIBIT B 
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS  
 

ROLLER WINDOW SHADES  122413 - 3 FEBRUARY 23, 2023 
 

C. Rollers: Corrosion-resistant steel or extruded-aluminum tubes of diameters and wall thicknesses required 
to accommodate operating mechanisms and weights and widths of shadebands indicated without 
deflection. Provide with permanently lubricated drive-end assemblies and idle-end assemblies designed to 
facilitate removal of shadebands for service. 

1. Roller Drive-End Location: Right side of interior face of shade. 
2. Direction of Shadeband Roll: Regular, from back (exterior face) of roller. 
3. Shadeband-to-Roller Attachment: Manufacturer's standard method. 

D. Mounting Hardware: Brackets or endcaps, corrosion resistant and compatible with roller assembly, 
operating mechanism, installation accessories, and mounting location and conditions indicated. 

E. Roller-Coupling Assemblies: Coordinated with operating mechanism and designed to join up to three 
inline rollers into a multiband shade that is operated by one roller drive-end assembly. 

F. Shadebands: 

1. Shadeband Material: Light-blocking fabric. 
2. Shadeband Bottom (Hem) Bar: Steel or extruded aluminum. 

a. Type: Enclosed in sealed pocket of shadeband material. 

G. Installation Accessories: 

1. Front Fascia: Aluminum extrusion that conceals front and underside of roller and operating 
mechanism and attaches to roller endcaps without exposed fasteners. 

a. Shape: L-shaped. 
b. Height: Manufacturer's standard height required to conceal roller and shadeband assembly 

when shade is fully open, but not less than 4 inches . 

2. Installation Accessories Color and Finish: As selected from manufacturer's full range. 

2.3 SHADEBAND MATERIALS 

A. Light-Filtering Fabric: Woven fabric, stain and fade resistant. Provide SWFcontract Selectweave Solar 
Fabric Crosshatch S300 (3% openness), color: Fog.    

2.4 ROLLER SHADE FABRICATION 

A. Product Safety Standard: Fabricate roller shades to comply with WCMA A 100.1, including requirements 
for flexible, chain-loop devices; lead content of components; and warning labels. 

B. Unit Sizes: Fabricate units in sizes to fill window and other openings as follows, measured at 74 deg F: 

1. Between (Inside) Jamb Installation: Width equal to jamb-to-jamb dimension of opening in which 
shade is installed less 1/4 inch per side or 1/2-inch total, plus or minus 1/8 inch . Length equal to 
head-to-sill or -floor dimension of opening in which shade is installed less 1/4 inch , plus or minus 
1/8 inch . 

C. Shadeband Fabrication: Fabricate shadebands without battens or seams to extent possible, except as 
follows: 

153



LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 EXHIBIT B 
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS  
 

ROLLER WINDOW SHADES  122413 - 4 FEBRUARY 23, 2023 
 

1. Vertical Shades: Where width-to-length ratio of shadeband is equal to or greater than 1:4, provide 
battens and seams at uniform spacings along shadeband length to ensure shadeband tracking and 
alignment through its full range of movement without distortion of the material. 

2. Railroaded Materials: Railroad material where material roll width is less than the required width of 
shadeband and where indicated. Provide battens and seams as required by railroaded material to 
produce shadebands with full roll-width panel(s) plus, if required, one partial roll-width panel 
located at top of shadeband. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 EXAMINATION 

A. Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer present, for compliance with requirements for 
installation tolerances, operational clearances, and other conditions affecting performance of the Work. 

B. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected. 

3.2 ROLLER SHADE INSTALLATION 

A. Install roller shades level, plumb, and aligned with adjacent units according to manufacturer's written 
instructions. 

1. Opaque Shadebands: Located so shadeband is not closer than 1/2 inches  to interior face of 
window framing. Allow clearances for window operation hardware. 

B. Roller Shade Locations: As indicated on Drawings. 

3.3 ADJUSTING 

A. Adjust and balance roller shades to operate smoothly, easily, safely, and free from binding or malfunction 
throughout entire operational range. 

3.4 CLEANING AND PROTECTION 

A. Clean roller shade surfaces, after installation, according to manufacturer's written instructions. 

B. Provide final protection and maintain conditions, in a manner acceptable to manufacturer and Installer, 
that ensure that roller shades are without damage or deterioration at time of Substantial Completion. 

C. Replace damaged roller shades that cannot be repaired, in a manner approved by Architect, before time of 
Substantial Completion. 

3.5 DEMONSTRATION 

A. Engage a factory-authorized service representative to train Owner's maintenance personnel to adjust, 
operate, and maintain motor-operated roller shades. 

END OF SECTION 122413 

154



STAFF LOUNGE

103

LIBRARY

102
INFANTS

406B

OFFICE

100

NURSE

100A

OFFICE

101

A

B

A
C

D

F

E

F

G GG G G GG G
H

I
J

AA

K

K

K

K

L

L M

ROLLER SHADES SCHEDULE -

TODD HALL

TAG WIDTH HEIGHT NOTES

NOTE: ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED IN 
FIELD PRIOR TO FABRICATION. ALL OPENINGS 
REQUIRING MULTIPLE PANELS, ALIGN SEAMS 
TO EXISTING WINDOW MULLIONS.

A

A 82.5" 63"
B 36" 50.5"
C 134.5" 62"
D 36" 45"
E 154" 45"
F 84" 63.5"
G 40" 112"
H 101.5" 71"
I 41" 84"
J 99" 71"
K 48.5" 41"
L 24" 34" MOUNTED ON DOOR
M 20" 34" MOUNTED ON DOOR

COPYRIGHT 2022, STUDIOGC, INC.

2.23.23

E
X

H
IB

IT
 C

1

Todd Hall

6950 E Prairie Rd., Lincolnwood, IL 60712
Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments
Lincolnwood SD 74

1" = 50'-0"
1

First Floor Plan - Todd Hall

155



N 104.5" 79"

O 37" 79"

P 144" 32"

Q 49" 80"

R 92.5" 79"

S 32" 79"

T 34" 32"

U 168" 32"

V 156" 86"

W 85" 65"

X 96" 32"

156



N 104.5" 79"

O 37" 79"

P 144" 32"

Q 49" 80"

R 92.5" 79"

S 32" 79"

T 34" 32"

U 168" 32"

V 156" 86"

W 85" 65"

X 96" 32"

157



LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 
TODD HALL AND RUTLEDGE HALL WINDOW TREATMENTS 

 
 

009113.1-1 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1     DATE:  FEBRUARY 28, 2023 
 
Project:  Lincolnwood School District 74 
  Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Window Treatments 
 
 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. The Notice and Specifications dated February 23, 2023 and Exhibits dated February 23, 2023 for the above 
referenced project are hereby modified and revised as follows. 

B. The information contained within this Addendum modifies, supplements or replaces information contained 
in the Project Manual and the Contract Drawings and is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents. 

C. Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum on the Bid Form.  FAILURE TO DO SO MAY SUBJECT THE 
BIDDER TO DISQUALIFICATION. 

D. The Bidding Documents include the Notice and Specifications dated February 23, 2023 and Exhibits dated 
February 23, 2023, and Addenda issued prior to the receipt of bids. 

1.2 CLARIFICATIONS 

A. A question was received regarding how the installation may meet the prevailing wage requirements. 
Typically, window treatment installers fall under the carpentry trade. Here are the current prevailing wage 
rates and trades for Cook County: https://labor.illinois.gov/content/dam/soi/en/web/idol/laws-
rules/conmed/documents/2023-rates/jan_18/Cook.pdf  

 
 
End Addendum 009113.1 
 
This Addendum consists of 1 page. 

158



 

 

   
  

 
 

DATE:  March 21, 2023 

TOPIC: Village of Lincolnwood Intergovernmental Agreement 

PREPARED BY: David Russo 

 

Recommended for: 

☒ Action 

☒ Discussion 

☒ Information 

 

Purpose/Background: 

The District and Village of Lincolnwood have been working on an Intergovernmental Agreement to 

codify use of each other’s facilities. The Agreement outlines which facilities can be used and during 

what times in the day.    

 

District Legal Counsel has reviewed this Agreement and incorporated language to ensure any 

Village use of District facilities would factor in existing rentals that the District has authorized. 

Additionally, there were minor edits to specific time frames District facilities become available for 

Village use. The Village accepted all the changes.  

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None 

 

Recommendation: 

It is the Administrative recommendation that the Facilities Committee concurs to recommend to the 

    Board of Education to approve this Intergovernmental Agreement between Lincolnwood School  

    District 74 and the Village of Lincolnwood from April 6, 2023 to August 31, 2027.  

 

Executive Summary 

Facilities Committee Meeting 

159



 

1 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 74 
AND THE VILLAGE OF LINCOLNWOOD 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 6th day of April, 2023, between the BOARD 
OF EDUCATION OF LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 74, Cook County, Illinois 
(hereinafter referred to as the “School District") and the BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNWOOD, Cook County, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the "Village") 
and from time to time referred to collectively as the "Parties"; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties hereto are a unit of local government and a school district, and the 
Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, authorizes units of local 
governments and school districts to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any 
manner not prohibited by law or ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 5, Illinois Compiled Statutes, Act 220, Section 1, et seq., entitled the 
"Intergovernmental Cooperation Act", provides that any power or powers, privileges or authority 
exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of local government or school district may be 
exercised jointly with another unit of local government or school district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to cooperate in promoting cultural, recreational, educational and 
related programming for the benefit of the community and the citizens the Parties jointly 
represent and serve by allowing the Village to utilize facilities and school grounds owned by the 
School District and allowing the School District to utilize facilities and property owned by the 
Village; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that this intergovernmental agreement (hereinafter the 
"Agreement") will aid their governmental objectives and is for the benefit of the citizens. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants of the 
Parties hereto, it is agreed by and between the Parties as follows: 
 
Section 1:   Preamble 
 
The Preamble hereto shall be and hereby constitutes a part of this Agreement.  
 
Section 2:  Authority 
 
This Agreement is made pursuant to the above-cited provisions of the Illinois Constitution, and 
the laws of the State of Illinois, including the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, the Illinois 
Municipal Code, and the Illinois School Code.   
  
Section 3:  Duration 
 
This Agreement shall become effective upon the date set forth above and shall be in effect for a 
period until August 31, 2027. On or before August 31, 2027, this agreement will be reviewed by 
the Parties who shall meet and confer to determine whether the Agreement shall be revised to 
reflect any changes.  
 
 
 
 

160



 

2 
 

Section 4:  School District Facility Use 
 
The School District shall allow the Village to use its sites and buildings on a first-priority basis 
without charge or cost when such sites and buildings are not occupied for school purposes. The 
School District reserves the right to restrict access to areas within its buildings and to assign 
locations within any of its buildings that will accommodate the intended purpose of Village 
program. It is agreed that these facilities are to be utilized by the Village for supervised, public 
recreational programs as outlined in this section. During such times, the School District shall not 
restrict public use of the property (including the walkways, driveways, and parking lots) as it may 
be required and/or necessary to provide access to the facilities for public recreation use.  
 
For the purpose of this agreement, "School Purposes" shall mean any program or usage 
sponsored or conducted under the auspices of the School District which the Board of Education 
has determined meets the goals of the School District. 
 
The following facilities will be made available by the School District to the Village when such use 
does not interfere with the program or possible maintenance or remodeling schedules of the 
School District. The Village and School District shall coordinate periodically on any schedule of 
anticipated usages by the Village.  Following such periodic meetings, the School District shall 
then coordinate the scheduled usages of School District facilities by any other recurring user.  If 
the Village has not requested a particular facility in advance and a second-priority user has 
reserved said facility, the School District shall work with the Village on locating an acceptable 
School District location or alternate date and time.  Additional room use requests during the 
school year and summer months may be requested through the School District’s Application for 
Use of School Facilities.  
 
Todd Hall School 
 
 
 
The Gym shall be available to the Village for use by the Village Parks and Recreation 
Department: (i) Mondays through Fridays, between  6:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m., on each day that 
school is in session; and (ii) Saturdays and Sundays, from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
 
These rooms are only available when not being used for school purposes and are always 
subject to approval through the School District’s Application for Use of School Facilities. 
 
Rutledge Hall School 
 
The Multipurpose Room, Teacher’s Lounge, and playground will be available to the Village for 
use by the Village Parks and Recreation Department Monday through Friday between 2:45 p.m. 
and 6:30 p.m., on each day that school is in session.  
 
The Gym shall be available to the Village for use by the Village Parks and Recreation 
Department: (i) Mondays through Fridays, between 2:45 p.m. and 8:00 p.m., on each day that 
school is in session; and (ii) Saturdays and Sundays, from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. A space 
suitable for the Village’s afterschool care program of up to 40 children will always be available to 
the Village on each day that school is in session.  
 
These rooms are only available when not being used for school purposes and are always 
subject to approval through the School District’s Application for Use of School Facilities. 

161



 

3 
 

 
Lincoln Hall School 
 
The Gym shall be available to the Village for use by the Village Parks and Recreation 
Department: (i) Mondays through Fridays, between  3:25 p.m. and 8:00 p.m., on each day that 
school is in session; and (ii) Saturdays and Sundays, from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
These rooms are only available when not being used for school purposes and are always 
subject to approval through the School District’s Application for Use of School Facilities. 
 
Additional Spaces 
 
The Village may request use of other School District facilities, such as an auditorium, field, or 
classroom, for any formal Village purpose. All requests are subject to approval through the 
School District’s Application for Use of School Facilities. The Village’s Application for the use of 
School Facilities shall be processed on a first priority basis after the School District’s own 
scheduled programs. 
 
Cleanliness 
 
The Village will be responsible for daily clean-up of the rooms and field areas which it uses. All 
garbage will be placed in appropriate containers supplied by the School District.  
 
Supervision 
 
The supervision of program participants will be the sole responsibility of the Village or its 
Designee.  
 
Communication  
 
Every effort will be made by the parties to keep open lines of communication between the 
School District and Village of Lincolnwood. 
 
Periodically, the Superintendent of Schools and/or their representative and the Village of 
Lincolnwood Village Manager and/or their representative will inspect the school facilities being 
used by the Village. The Village agrees to place the school facilities in the same condition as 
they were prior to its use and to pay for such work or damages suffered by the School District as 
a result of the Village's use, provided that the parties agree on the cost of such work or 
damages and agree that it was caused by the Village.   
 
Section 5:  Village of Lincolnwood Facility Use 
 
The following facilities will be made available by the Village to the School District without charge 
or cost when such use does not interfere with the schedule of the Village: 
 
Village Hall Council Chambers 
 
Village Hall Council Chambers and audio/video system will be made available to the School 
District for the monthly Board of Education meetings. The School District will provide the Village 
with a schedule of regular Board of Education meetings on a timely basis. It is understood that if 
the Board of Education meeting conflicts with a Village event, the Village event takes 

162



 

4 
 

precedence. Notice will be given to the School District if there is a conflict with a proposed 
Board of Education meeting. 
 
The Village maintains equipment for the broadcast of live and recorded media on cable 
channels and on a video platform shared with the School District. The system includes 
audio/visual equipment that is owned and maintained by the Village. The Village will broadcast 
the School District meetings that are recorded in the Council Chambers.  
 
The Village will provide the School District with the contact information for any part-time staff 
trained in operation of the audio / visual system for meetings in the Council Chambers. The 
School District is responsible for staffing and compensating anyone assigned to operate the a/v 
system in the Council Chambers. The Village will train, at no cost to the School District, any staff 
member assigned by the School District to operate the audio / visual system. The Village 
reserves the right to deny access to anyone to their audio / visual system. 
 
Village Cable Channel 
 
The School District may request use of the Village’s cable channel for School District 
programming purposes. Requests for use of the cable channel shall be submitted to the Village 
Manager’s Office. The Village Manager shall have the authority to approve or deny any request 
for the cable channel. 
 
Recreational Facilities 
 
The School District may request use of other Village facilities, such as the Proesel Park Shelter, 
Community Center, or sports fields (“Village Facilities”), for any formal School District purpose. 
All requests are subject to approval through the Village of Lincolnwood Parks and Recreation 
Department permit application process, and may not conflict with planned Village use of the 
facility. The School District’s permit application for the use of Village Facilities shall be 
processed on a first priority basis after the Village’s own scheduled programs.  
 
Permit fees for use of Village Facilities will be waived by the Village.  
 
Cleanliness 
The School District will be responsible for daily clean-up of the Village Facilities which it uses. 
All garbage will be placed in appropriate containers supplied by the Village.  
 
Supervision 
The supervision of program participants will be the sole responsibility of the School District or its 
Designee.  
 
Communication  
Every effort will be made by the parties to keep open lines of communication between the 
School District and Village of Lincolnwood. 
 
Periodically, the Village Manager and/or their representative and the School District 
Superintendent and/or their representative will inspect the Village Facilities being used by the 
School District. The School District agrees to place the Village Facilities in the same condition 
as they were prior to its use and to pay for such work or damages suffered by the Village as a 
result of the School District's use, provided that the parties agree on the cost of such work or 
damages and agree that it was caused by the School District. 

163



 

5 
 

 
Section 6: Liability Insurance 
 
The Village 
 
The Village is liable for, and hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the School District, 
the members of the Board of Education in their official capacity, and the employees, agents, or 
volunteers of the School District from any claims, liability, damages, costs, expenses, fees, 
including attorney's fee, for bodily injury or property damage which may arise, either directly or 
indirectly, in connection with the use by the Village pursuant to this Agreement of the School 
District's premises and adjacent areas, including but not limited to the playgrounds and adjacent 
play fields, by the Village, and in addition, the Village agrees to obtain, at its sole expense, 
liability insurance in the amount of not less than $3,000,000.00 combined single limit per 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage all covering its obligations hereunder. Such 
insurance policy or policies shall name the School District, its Board members, officers, agents 
and employees, as additional insured, and shall contain a provision stating that the insurance 
may not be canceled unless the School District is given at least 30 days prior written notice of 
cancellation. The Village will deposit a certificate of insurance with the School District 
evidencing proper liability insurance for said purpose, and shall maintain a current certificate of 
insurance. 
 
The Village's liability under this Agreement and its insurance shall specifically extend to and 
include the corridors and entrances which the Village and its employees or visitors may pass in 
order to gain entrance to the School District’s premises.   
 
The School District 
 
The School District is liable for, and hereby agrees to indemnity and hold harmless the Village, 
the members of the Village Board in their official capacity, and the employees, agents, or 
volunteers of the Village from any claims, liability, damages, costs, expenses, fees, including 
attorney's fee, for bodily injury or property damage which may arise, either directly or indirectly, 
in connection with the use by the School District pursuant to this Agreement of the Village's 
premises and adjacent areas, including but not limited to the playgrounds and adjacent play 
fields, by the School District, and in addition, the School District agrees to obtain, at its sole 
expense, liability insurance in the amount of not less than $3,000,000.00 combined single limit 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, all covering its obligations hereunder. 
Such insurance policy or policies shall name the Village, its Village Board members, officers, 
agents and employees, as additional insured, and shall contain a provision stating that the 
insurance may not be canceled unless the Village is given at least 30 days prior written notice of 
cancellation. The School District will deposit a certificate of insurance with the Village 
evidencing proper liability insurance for said purpose, and shall maintain a current certificate of 
insurance. 
 
The School District's liability under this Agreement and its insurance shall specifically extend to 
and include the corridors and entrances which the School District and its employees or visitors 
may pass in order to gain entrance to the Village's premises.  
 
Section 7: Workers Compensation 
 
The Parties shall each carry worker's compensation insurance with statutory limits of liability.   
 

164



 

6 
 

Section 8: Village and School District Staff 
 
General Expectations 
 
The Village and School District shall ensure all staff, substitutes, and contractors that may be 
involved in providing services on behalf of the entity on the other party’s property have 
completed and satisfactorily passed a background check through the state of Illinois (at a 
minimum) and have been cross-referenced with the state of Illinois and federal sexual offender 
registry prior to their use of the facility.  
 
Sexual Harassment Policy 
 
Each Party has a written policy regarding sexual harassment which complies in all respects with 
the Illinois Human Rights Act. 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4)(2005). 
 
Section 9: Additional Terms 
 
In recognition of the facility use and services provided, the Village and School District also agree 
to the following: 
 

1. The Village agrees to waive any applicable fees for the use of Village Hall Council 
Chambers, the audio/visual system, cable channel, Proesel Park Picnic Shelter, sports 
fields, Community Center, and parks.  
 

2. The School District agrees to provide the use of facilities for public recreation programs 
at no charge or cost to the Village. 
 

3. The Village agrees to provide scavenger service for all the School District facilities based 
upon the current pick-up schedule in lieu of a fee. 
 

4. The Village agrees by proper Ordinance, to waive the municipal utility taxes charged to 
the School District and its facilities for public utility services, including but not limited to, 
natural gas and telecommunications, as specifically permitted by the Illinois Municipal 
Code, 65 ILCS 5/8-11-2(f), in lieu of  a fee.  
 

5. The Village will provide annual vehicle stickers for the School District’s vehicle fleet at no 
charge. The School District agrees to provide a list of vehicles to the Village’s Finance 
Director on an annual basis.  
 

6. The Village operates a Fire Department and Police Department, collectively known as 
“Public Safety”, that provide services for the School District and the entire geographic 
area of Lincolnwood. The Village shall provide personnel assigned to Public Safety, as 
staffing and schedules provide, to the School District for routine services and support for 
the School District (e.g. facility and event walkthroughs, fire prevention services, alarm 
witnessing service,). In instances where routine staffing does not allow for the 
assignment of staff members, the School District may request for a special detail in 
which the School District would pay the commiserate rate for staffing. Each department 
that represents Public Safety will designate a representative to the School District and 
any service by that department covered by this agreement will be coordinated through 
that representative. 
 

165



 

7 
 

7. The Village’s Police Department agrees to assume responsibility for the hiring, training, 
and supervision of all crossing guards that serve at four locations. The Village reserves 
the right to outsource crossing guard services to a third party company. The School 
District agrees to share the expense of the program equally with the Village and ensure 
coverage at both East Prairie and Lunt, and East Prairie and Pratt. The Village agrees to 
share the expense of the program equally with the School District and ensure coverage 
at both Crawford and Farwell and Crawford and Lunt locations.  

 

In the event of a temporary absence of a crossing guard at either of the locations of Crawford 
and Farwell and/or Crawford and Lunt it shall be the responsibility of the Village to procure a 
replacement for that location.  In the event of a temporary absence of a crossing guard at either 
of the locations of Pratt and East Prairie and / or Lunt and East Prairie it shall be the 
responsibility of the School District to procure a replacement for that location. 
 

a. Crossing Guard Schedule: 

Location AM PM Early Dismissal 

Pratt and East Prairie (1) 7:40 – 8:20 
am 

2:40 – 3:45 pm 10:55 – 11:40 am 

Crawford and Farwell (1) 7:40 – 8:20 
am 

2:40 – 3:45 pm 10:55 – 11:40 am 

Crawford and Lunt (1) 7:40 – 8:35 
am 

2:40 – 3:30 pm 10:55 – 11:40 am 

Lunt and East Prairie (1) 7:40 – 8:35 
am 

2:45 – 3:45 pm 10:55 – 11:40 am 

 
8. The Village agrees to include the School District on the wireless alarm system. The 

School District agrees to pay the fees as outlined in the Village’s Annual Fee Resolution.   
 

9. The Village agrees that for work where a Village-issued building permit is required, all 
associated fees shall be waived. Where a deposit is required for work, a deposit will 
need to be provided in line with the Village Code.  
 

10. In the event that there is a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and terms of the 
School District’s Application for Use of School Facilities or the Village’s permit 
application forms, the terms of this Agreement take precedence. 

 

11. The School District may request the placement of communication materials to be 
included in various platforms controlled by the Village including, but not limited to, the 
Village’s website, social media platforms, and Reverse 9-1-1 system.  The request shall 
be submitted via email to the Village.  The Village reserves the right to deny any such 
request. 
 

12. The Village may request the placement of communication materials to be included on 
various platforms controlled by the School District including, but not limited to, the 
School District’s website, social media platforms, and electronic communications to 
parents.  The request shall be submitted via email to the School District.  The School 
District reserves the right to deny any such request. 

 
TERMINATION 
 

166



 

8 
 

Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 60 days written notice to the other party. 
 
NOTICES 
 
All notices and demands required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 
been given or made when delivered personally or when mailed by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
Village:    School District: 
 
Village Manager   Superintendent 
Village of Lincolnwood  Lincolnwood School District #74 
6900 N. Lincoln Ave.   6950 East Prairie Rd. 
Lincolnwood, IL 60712  Lincolnwood, IL 60712 
 
Or at such other address or addresses that shall be designated in writing from time to time by 
either the School District or the Village.  
 
  

167



 

9 
 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this agreement the day and year 
first above written.   
 
 
ATTEST: LINCOLNWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NUMBER 74 
 an Illinois school district   
 
 
 
 
By:   By:   
 John P. Vranas  Kevin Daly_______________ 
Its: Secretary Its: Board President 
    
 
 
ATTEST: VILLAGE OF LINCOLNWOOD 
 an Illinois home rule municipal corporation  
 
 
 
 
By:   By:   
 Beryl Herman Jesal Patel 
Its: Village Clerk Its: Village President 
 
 

168



DATE:  March 21, 2023

TOPIC: District Facilities Update

PREPARED BY: Courtney Whited

Recommended for:

     Action

 ☒ Discussion

 ☒ Information

Purpose/Background:

To provide the Facilities Committee an update on ongoing Districtwide project(s)

1. Lowery McDonnell indicated that Mitchell did not ship out the remaining parts for the 
Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Cafeterias. It will take several more weeks. The District also 
requested a solution for the two bolts that have snapped at the folding section of the 
tables after a few months of usage.

2. A Kathak dance organization is considering a Lincoln Hall Auditorium rental on 
Saturday, April 15. If approved, they will be performing for approximately 100 guests.

3. The magnetic closure was installed on the CCDC office door in Todd Hall.

Facilities Committee Meeting

169


	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
	2. AUDIENCE TO VISITORS
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	a. Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes - FEBRUARY 21, 2023
	2_21_23_Facilities_Minutes_FINAL


	4. DISTRICT ARCHITECT OF RECORD - STUDIOGC architecture+interiors
	a. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: StudioGC architecture+interiors Project(s) Update
	I. In an Effort to Obtain Bid Approvals from the Board of Education in Autumn 2023, the Administration Seeks Direction from the Facilities Committee and StudioGC Relative to Summer 2023 Construction Projects. The Current Version of the SD74 Master Facilities Plan is Attached.
	4_FY24 Facilities Project Planning
	4a_230310-SD74 Facilities Plan w 2023 bids


	b. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Todd Hall’s PreK and Kindergarten Classroom Furniture
	1_Todd Hall PreK _ Kdg Furniture
	1a_23_0308-Todd_Furniture Floor Plans
	1b_Proposal Tab-22124-Todd Hall PreK K FFE - w-attach

	c. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Rutledge Hall’s Library & Grades 4-5 Reading Nook Furniture
	2_Rutledge Hall Library _ Reading Nook Furniture
	2a_23_0309-Lincolnwood SD74 Rutledge Hall LRC-Final Quotes

	d. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: 2023 Site Work Bid Results (Todd Hall Courtyard & Lincoln Hall Plaza)
	3_Site Work 2023 Bid Results
	3a_LReview_22123-BearCC
	3b_Bid Prop-22123-Bear Construction

	e. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Window Treatments Bid Results
	5_Window Treatment Bid Results
	5a_Tiles In Style Bid Packet
	5b_Notice_Specifications_2023_SD74_Window_Treatments
	5c_Ex_B-122413_-_ROLLER_WINDOW_SHADES
	5d_Ex_C-Drawings
	5e_009113_Addendum_No_1


	5. OLD BUSINESS
	6. NEW BUSINESS
	a. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION/ACTION: Village of Lincolnwood Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
	6_VOL_IGA_ Facilities
	6a_Draft SD74-VOL IGA  2.01.2023 (2023-02-08 BRB redline)


	7. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: District Facilities Update
	a. Todd Hall and Rutledge Hall Cafeterias - Lowery McDonnell & Mitchell
	b. Kathak Dance Organization - Facilities Rental
	c. Magnetic Closure was Installed on the CCDC Office Door
	7_Facilities Update 20230321

	8. ADJOURNMENT

